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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WM

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), the
business performance of Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31st December
2011 is summarized in the following paragraphs.

RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended
31st December 2011 amounted to approximately
HK$66,500,000, representing approximately 90.7%
decrease as compared to approximately HK$712,404,000
for the year ended 31st December 2010. The decrease
in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in the
sales of trading properties of the year.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, gross profit
of the Group was approximately HK$41,312,000,
representing a decrease of approximately
HK$178,113,000 (approximately 81.2%) as compared to
that of year 2010, which was mainly due to the decrease
in turnover.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, net profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company was
approximately HK$70,822,000, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$246,337,000 (approximately 77.7%)
as compared to that of year 2010, which was attributable
to the decrease in turnover and the gain in fair value of the
investment properties of approximately HK$21,970,000 as
compared to the gain of approximately HK$90,003,000 in
2010.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, selling
and distribution costs and administrative expenses
were approximately HK$686,000 and approximately
HK$13,209,000 respectively, representing decreases by
approximately HK$521,000 (approximately 43.2%) and
approximately HK$1,770,000 (approximately 11.8%)
respectively as compared to those of year 2010.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group’s fair
value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss was approximately HK$10,240,000 as compared
to net financial gain of approximately HK$13,573,000 in
2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the year under review, the Group had worked hard
in cost controlling and concentrated on businesses of
promising return, thus continuing to achieve profit results
of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Property Development and Trading

The property businesses of the Group are mainly property
development and trading, and property investment.

In Hong Kong, the Group is in possession of certain
commercial properties for sale and most of them are
situated at the prime commercial districts, like Central,
Queensway and Wan Chai, Hong Kong. On 30th June
2011, Grandtex Development Limited (“Grandtex
Development”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as buyer, completed the purchase from an
independent third party the properties situated at the
whole floor on 17th and 3 car parking spaces on 2nd
Floor of BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong as properties held for sale, at a
consideration of HK$104,000,000.

On 28th September 2011, Grandtex Development, as
buyer, completed the purchase from another independent
third party the properties situated at the Offices 805A
and 806 on 8th Floor, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong as properties held for sale, at a
consideration of HK$63,669,000.

To control on the residential properties prices and the
assets inflation in the PRC, the PRC government launched
a series of policies on tightened credit for transactions
in property markets in 2011. However, on the premise
the appreciation of Renminbi, increasing size of middle
class and increase in per capita disposable income are
anticipated, the investors still have intense interests in the
high quality residential and office properties in the PRC. In
Hong Kong, the Hong Kong government initiated a series
of control measures and special stamp duty in residential
property segment, the over-heated residential properties
prices were in fact cooled down. From the view point of
the Company’s management, given advantages, namely
the interest rate remains low, economic fundamentals in
the PRC and Hong Kong remain solid and investment
conditions are stable, the properties in Hong Kong
continue to attract the attention of investors from
mainland China and other regions; hence the outlook for
the property investment markets in both the PRC and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WM

Property Investment

Dawning Tower, located in Shenzhen, the PRC, continued
to secure a high occupancy rate. For the year ended 31st
December 2011, the Group recognised an income of
approximately HK$23,280,000, representing an increase
of approximately 9.9% over the year 2010.

In order to maintain the prestigious status of Dawning
Tower among commercial buildings in the locality, the
Group will continue to enhance the management quality
at Dawning Tower and maintain good relationship with its
customers. It is expected that the building’s occupancy
rate will continue to maintain at high level in the year of
2012. High occupancy rate and effective cost control of
Dawning Tower have secured steady net operating profit
from the building.

The properties for commercial uses at levels 4 and 5 of
Beijing East Gate Plaza, the PRC with aggregate office
area of approximately 5,100 square metres, generated
a rental income of approximately HK$8,097,000 to the
Group for the year ended 31st December 2011, an
increase of approximately HK$1,278,000 as compared
with the year 2010.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group
recorded revenue from tenancies of approximately
HK$18,418,000 from all of Hong Kong properties of the
Group, a decrease of approximately HK$10,173,000
(approximately 35.6%) as compared to approximately
HK$28,591,000 in 2010.

In the 2nd half of 2011, the globally tight credit and
shortage of monetary have led to the gradual increase
in interest rates, the number of transactions of the PRC
and Hong Kong residential and commercial properties
dropped; nonetheless there was real demand for
tenancies in the residential and commercial properties in
the PRC and Hong Kong. It is expected that the average
rental income per square metre from the properties
available for lease will increase in 2012, generating steady
cash inflow to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group will continue specialising property investment
and trading in the PRC and Hong Kong in anticipation of
steady return. Besides, the Group will also continue to
look for suitable investment opportunities in other areas,
such as projects characterised by stable cash inflows and
simple management mechanism.

Capital Market Investment and Financial Services

The Group has all the time endeavoured to increase the
return from current assets, therefore having diversified its
investment portfolio to accommodate more current assets
with higher liquidity, including securities, high investment
grade debt securities and short-term financial products
with defined and limited risks.

In 2011, there was poor performance in the financial
and capital markets in the PRC and Hong Kong. For the
year ended 31st December 2011, the Group recorded
a loss of approximately HK$8,764,000 (2010: profit of
approximately HK$13,986,000) from investment activities
in capital market of Hong Kong. The loss in this segment
was due to the impacts of slow recovery of the US
economy and the sovereign debt crisis in Euro Zone,
causing the continuous turbulences in the capital market
in Hong Kong during the reporting period. The impacts are
expected to persist in the coming years.

The Group maintained a modest operation in provisions
of financial services business, providing short to medium
term loans to the business associates and partners of the
Group. In view of the Group’s sufficient working capital
in the current period, as well as in the future, and bank
deposits interest rates maintains low, the financial services
segment contributes a satisfactory return to the Group,
recording a profit of approximately HK$14,757,000 for the
year ended 31st December 2011 (2010: approximately
HK$1,570,000) including an impairment in the amount
of approximately HK$2,469,000 for a loan. The Group at
all times emphasises the importance of risk control and
executes seriously effective risk control policies, which
include assessment of the credit risks involved and/or
obtaining valuable securities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R RAM

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group managed to maintain its liquidity at a healthy
level, with the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounting to approximately HK$719,031,000 as at 31st
December 2011 (31st December 2010: approximately
HK$980,984,000). The Group exercised strict credit
control on its trade receivable to ensure the adequacy
of the working capital. As at 31st December 2011, trade
receivable of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$2,220,000 (31st December 2010: approximately
HK$1,890,000). The current ratio as at 31st December
2011 was 37.5 while that as at 31st December 2010 was
44.0. As at 31st December 2011 and 31st December
2010, the Group did not have any outstanding bank loan.
As at 31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010, the
Group’s gearing ratio (on the basis of total borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equity) was maintained at a level
of zero.

Treasury Management

In respect of financial resources management, the
Group continued in diversifying its investment portfolio to
accommodate more current assets with higher liquidity,
including securities and debts securities, in order to
enhance the return of current assets. The aggressive
and yet prudent financial resources management policy
would be continued to maximise investments return within
a reasonable risk level. Meanwhile, the Board is of the
opinion that the retaining of excessive cash and cash
equivalents as short-term deposits can ensure the Group
to catch investment opportunities agilely, thus increasing
the return from investments.

Capital Structure

The Group has mainly relied on its equity and internally
generated cash flow to finance its operations. As at 31st
December 2011 and 31st December 2010, the Group had
no outstanding borrowings.

During the year 2011, the Company did not issue any new
ordinary shares and its related securities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of Assets

As of 31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010,
the Group has not pledged any of its assets and bank
deposits to obtain general banking facilities or short-term
bank borrowings.

Employees’ Remuneration and Benefits

The Group had 23 employees including managerial,
executive, technical and general staffs in Hong Kong
and the PRC as at 31st December 2011 (31st December
2010: 25). The level of remuneration, the promotion and
the magnitude of remuneration adjustment are justified
according to their job duties, working performance and
professional experience. All staffs and executive Directors
in Hong Kong office have participated in the mandatory
provident fund scheme. Other employees’ benefits
include the granting of share options by the Board of the
Group under the share options scheme adopted by the
Company.

Foreign Exchange and Currency Risk

All incomes and funds applied to direct costs, purchases
of equipment and payments of salaries were dominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi; therefore, it was not
necessary for the Group to use any financial instruments
for hedging purpose, and the Group’s exposure to the
fluctuation of the exchange risk was minimal. During the
year under review, the Group has not engaged in any
hedging activities. As of 31st December 2011, cash and
cash equivalents of the Group were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. The other
information of foreign exchange and currency risks of the
Company is to be set out in the section “Financial Risk
Management Objectives and Policies” in the note 33 to
the financial statements of this annual report 2011 of the
Company.

Substantial Acquisition and Disposal

On 29th September 2011, the Group disposed
Opportunity Investments Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Disposal Companies”) to an independent
third party at a consideration of HK$17,025,000. The
Disposal Companies are engaged in investment holdings
and building management. The transaction generated a
net gain of approximately HK$5,241,000 to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WM

Save as foresaid, the Group had not participated in any
substantial acquisition and disposal during the year under
review.

Contingent Liabilities

Save the incident as disclosed in the section “Litigation”
below, the Group had no material contingent liability as at
31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010.

LITIGATION

Stadium Holdings Limited (“Stadium”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as plaintiff, had initiated a
civil action in High Court against an independent third
party as defendant for recovering a deposit, related
legal cost and damages in relation to an unsuccessful
property acquisition in 2009. Finally, favourable judgment
was granted to Stadium. The defendant was ordered to
pay approximately HK$2,414,000 as an assessment of
damages together with the deposit, interest and related
legal costs to Stadium by the High Court. In 2011,
Stadium received the damages, deposit, interest and
related legal costs in full.

DIVIDENDS

The Board resolved to recommend to the shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 25th April
2012 (2012 AGM”) a final dividend of HK$0.016 (2010:
HK$0.015) per share and a special dividend of HK$0.08
(2010: Nil) per share to be paid on Friday, 11th May
2012 to those shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday,
2nd May 2012. The final dividend and special dividend
will amount to approximately HK$31,786,000 (2010:
approximately HK$29,799,000) and approximately
HK$158,928,000 (2010: Nil) respectively.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wong Chung Tak

Aged 53, was appointed as the Chairman and an
executive Director of the board of Directors (the
“Board”) of the Company in October 2003. He is
the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”). Mr. Wong is also a director
of each of the subsidiaries of the Company. He is the
president and an executive director of Thing On Group
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Wong has been working in investment and finance
companies for more than twenty years and is an executive
director of several local investment and finance companies
currently. Mr. Wong has solid experience and obtained
brilliant results in corporate development strategies,
corporate operation management, market and projects
development. He has established strong business
connections and distribution network in the South East
Asia, and is especially strong in business development
in the region. Mr. Wong did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies in the past three years.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Wong is interested in
1,434,640,623 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 72.22% of the total issued shares of
the Company, held through Thing On Group Limited, a
company which is beneficially owned by Mr. Wong, and
he is also interested in the share options of the Company
exercisable into 7,100,000 shares of the Company
granted to him and the share options of the Company
exercisable into 6,900,000 shares of the Company
granted to his spouse. Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick, a non-
executive Director of the Company, is a son of the elder
brother of Mr. Wong. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Wong does not have any relationship with any other
Director, senior management, substantial shareholders (as
defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) or controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company. There is no service contract between the
Company and Mr. Wong, and the term of service is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-Laws”). The emolument
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of Mr. Wong for the year ended 31st December 2011
is HK$1,919,000, which is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board with
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Tse Kam Fai

Aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company in October 2003 and the Deputy Chairman
of the Company in November 2006. He is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tse is
also an executive director of a local professional firm
providing regulatory compliance, corporate governance
and corporate secretarial services to listed and unlisted
corporations. Mr. Tse is a member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. He is also a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Tse
has more than 20 years’ solid experience in regulatory
compliance, corporate governance and corporate
secretarial matters of listed and unlisted companies. He
is the company secretary of three respective Hong Kong
listed companies. Mr. Tse did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies in the past three years.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Tse is interested in the
share options of the Company exercisable into 7,100,000
shares of the Company. He does not have any relationship
with any other Director, senior management, substantial
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company. There is no service contract between the
Company and Mr. Tse, and the term of service is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Bye-
Laws. The emolument of Mr. Tse for the year ended 31st
December 2011 is HK$712,000, which is recommended
by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board with reference to the Company’s performance and
profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions.

1 2 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited ZYIRIFHERER AT

B R IE A

BE48m R_ZTE=FTARZERLRBAZHTES
ER-BERF+-HEZERARRAZBIEE - BAK
RAIETHERRAZES - HELERB AR/ —R/ LT R
FETRARMBEOET  CREARRAAUEEKZE
XBERQRCHTES HELR/RBAFHAUELER
BRERAIMERGZER KRB EEEREZEE8 -
BEEEETRIF LT AT ZIEPET EREARATF
WEEBRBLARBB_THENHLELR - RAA/=K
BRLTRABZARWE - WAERBE=ZFLENEA
EHRREEERNEERS -

RARE B - B ERREERFAI/THEAR2RQE7,100,000
B in 2 BIRIET A S - WERAQARTMEMES -
ERERERE FERR(EER EWAADHERRR (GE
ZREMARR)BETFABER ANATEHEELET L
FARBAD  REBREZRABREMANERDBRE
BEASFHELSREREE PEEBHE T ——F+=
B=+—BItFEEZ#4 A712,0008 T HBE Th @ %
WZEeRs: RHEESLRAQAEENAFEIR
EAMHEEERLBMAET




NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris

Aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in September
2003 and has been re-designated as a non-executive
Director of the Company in June 2009. He is a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising), the senior partner of Liu
Leung Chan, Certified Public Accountants. He holds a
bachelor’'s degree in business administration from an
American university and is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United
Kingdom. Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the past three years.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Liu does not have any
interest in the shares of the Company. He does not
have any relationship with any other Director, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company. There is no service
contract between the Company and Mr. Liu, and the
term of service is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-Laws. The emolument of Mr. Liu
for the year ended 31st December 2011 is HK$100,000,
which is recommended by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board with reference to the
Company’s performance and profitability, as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions.

Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick

Aged 32, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company in January 2004. Mr. Wong obtained
a bachelor’s degree in Business Economics from
Oxford Brookes University in the U.K. in the year 2001.
He possesses several years of experience in financial
analysis. Mr. Wong is an executive director of a listed
company on The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc., being
responsible for the audit department of the company.
Save as aforesaid, Mr. Wong did not hold any directorship
in other listed companies in the past three years.
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As at the date of this report, Mr. Wong is interested
in the share options of the Company exercisable into
6,900,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Wong is a
son of the elder brother of Mr. Wong Chung Tak, the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong does not have any
relationship with any other Director, senior management,
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company. There is no service contract between
the Company and Mr. Wong, and the term of service
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-Laws. The emolument of Mr. Wong for the
year ended 31st December 2011 is HK$100,000, which
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board with reference to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company in June 2009. He is the chairman
of each of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee. He is also a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Master of
Professional Accounting. Mr. Chung is a director of an
accounting firm, Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd., and has
more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing
and taxation. Mr. Chung is currently an independent non-
executive director of each of China Financial Leasing
Group Limited, a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, Trasy Gold Ex Limited and Great
World Company Holdings Limited, both companies are
listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. Save as aforesaid, Mr. Chung did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the past
three years.
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As at the date of this report, Mr. Chung does not have
any interest in the shares of the Company. He does not
have any relationship with any other Director, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company. There is no service
contract between the Company and Mr. Chung, and the
term of service is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-Laws. The emolument
of Mr. Chung for the year ended 31st December
2011 is HK$200,000, which is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board with
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Aged 69, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since July 1993. He is a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lee holds
a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration and has
over 28 years’ experience in the trading and investment
fields in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Lee was
previously an executive director of Sun Hung Kai (China)
Limited; the vice president of telecommunication and
investment division, of Hong Kong First Pacific Group
and an executive director of PRC business development
of Lucent Technology (China) Inc. Mr. Lee is currently
holding senior positions in high-tech broadcasting and
telecommunication areas and is actively involved in
China’s marketing and investment activities. Mr. Lee did
not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the
past three years.
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As at the date of this report, Mr. Lee does not have
any interest in the shares of the Company. He does not
have any relationship with any other Director, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) or controlling shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. There
is no service contract between the Company and Mr.
Lee, and the term of service is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws. The
emolument of Mr. Lee for the year ended 31st December
2011 is HK$200,000, which is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board with
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.

Miss Chong Kally

Aged 37, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2003.
She is a member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. She is a Chartered Financial Analyst and
a member of Association for Investment Management
and Research. She graduated from the University of
Auckland with a Master in Engineering Management. She
majored in Electronic and Electrical Engineering in her
undergraduate. Miss Chong also pursued a Master in
Business Administration in the Chinese University of Hong
Kong while working in Hong Kong. She has extensive
experience in the banking, finance and manufacturing
sectors. Miss Chong did not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the past three years.
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As at the date of this report, Miss Chong is interested
in the share options of the Company exercisable into
6,900,000 shares of the Company. She does not have any
relationship with any other Director, senior management,
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company. There is no service contract between
the Company and Miss Chong, and the term of service
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-Laws. The emolument of Miss Chong for the
year ended 31st December 2011 is HK$200,000, which
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board with reference to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Mr. Leung Shui Yin, Steven

Aged 50, was appointed as qualified accountant of the
Company with effect from 21st December 2006. Mr.
Leung is a member of each of The Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants, CPA Australia and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has
solid experience in financial management, treasury
management, internal control and corporate finance, and
has been working in listed companies for over 10 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella

Ms. Chan was appointed as company secretary and
authorised representative of the Company with effect from
1st November 2006. Ms. Chan is an associate member of
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries. She is also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan has over 15 years’
experience in handling listed company secretarial matters.

EENEAEEABHN

RAIRE B A FE/ B R EE T AT R 2 §6,900,000
B 2 BRIEPEE RS - HEAARTAEMES -
ERERE FERR(TER EMAAD) KERERR (CE
F R EMHRR) W EFFBIER o AR E EE/NMEAS EETL
FRRBEEL - IRESHREZRARIEAANERRARE
BERE LHESREREE - FNEEE T ——F1+=
A=+—HItEE 28£ 520000087 8 v m
WZEeRs RAESTSL2RAQAEENAFEN R
ENHESEERLBMAET o

BEREEE

WE0R RZEERFT A+ —REZREALLF
ZEBREEH  c AAAEARERTEESHMES R
MNEHMAEREESHMACTEE - HHNEpERE &
BEE NAPERRCEREIFAEARENLR BB
MNETRRITERBBTF -

DAWE
BRI /N

BRMER —ZERF+—A - REZERRRRZARIM
ERREARR RNMEAREBBHFWUELEGRBB TN
EREER -BNRBAESRE LR - NAHFRB
BThERELFTARMEERB LR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4%} 1 7




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHE

The Directors’ present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December 2011 are set out in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on pages 40 to 41.

The Directors recommended to the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 25th April
2012 (“2012 AGM”) a final dividend of HK$0.016 (2010:
HK$0.015) per share and a special dividend of HK$0.08
(2010: Nil) per share for the year ended 31st December
2011 to be paid on Friday, 11th May 2012 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 2nd May 2012.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders
to attend and vote at the 2012 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
23rd April 2012 to Wednesday, 25th April 2012, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the 2012 AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 20th April
2012.
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For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to
the final and special dividends, the register of members
of the Company will be closed on Wednesday, 2nd
May 2012, no transfer of shares will be registered on
that date. In order to qualify for the proposed final and
special dividends, all transfers of shares accompanies by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 30th April 2012.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued all of its investment properties
at the year end date. The net increase in fair value of
approximately HK$21,970,000 has been charged directly
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Details of the movements in the investment properties
and property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st December 2011, the Company had reserves
in amount of approximately HK$38,142,000 available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie; in
addition, under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of approximately
HK$542,237,000, may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares and the Company’s contributed
surplus account, in the amount of approximately
HK$271,423,000, may be distributed under certain
circumstances.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREHRE

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chung Tak
Mr. Tse Kam Fai

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Miss Chong Kally

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87, Messrs.
Wong Chung Tak, Chung Koon Yan and Lee Kuo Ching,
Stewart will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the 2012 AGM.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
are not appointed for specific terms but are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-laws of
the Company.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2012
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

20 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited ZYIRIFHERER AT

ESRBBEYN

RAFERBEARSAY  ARRZEEMT

HITESE
THELELE
BRI L

FHITES !
BEFELE
EX&RELE

BYFHTES:
BERALLE
FERBELE
FEE= /N E

KEARA 2 AAARFESTIR  TRELLE  ERELE
REEBEERR - —FRREFAGLBESE
HETERLBERRF KRG LEREE-

BYFATESYERECED  HERARRZ AR
WERE-

BR_Z - —FRRBFASLERETCESTMERR
NE S EEMME QR AEMAREER —F AL IEAA
{EHEEE CEERERIN 2RBEA -




DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share Options” and
“Substantial Shareholders” below, as at 31st December
2011, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or any of their associates had any interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the registers maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or
its subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The current unexpired share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30th May 2002.
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 28 to the financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme BREE

Details of movements in the Company’s share options HE_Z——F+_A=+—HLEEZEREHEREF
during the year ended 31st December 2011 are set out Wz EeFEHEHET

below:
Number of shares fall to be issued
under the share options
REERETRTRALE
Outstanding at Granted/ Outstanding at
1st January (Lapsed) 31st December
2011 during 2011
Name of participants Date of grant of Exercise period Exercise period RZZ——% theyear RZZ- iﬁ
or category share options* of share options** of share options*** -A-H FREL/ t=A=1-
SEEEARAR R R4 A A BB IR 1T BRETRE™ e RAT 6 (%% ﬁikﬁ{ﬁ
HK$
AT
Directors
B2
Mr. Wong Chung Tak 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
TEELE 21.02.2007%29.05.2012
Mr. Tse Kam Fai 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
ABBELE 21.02.2007%29.05.2012
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012 0.72 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
IXfaks 21.02.2007%29.05.2012
Miss Chong Kally 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 to0 29.05.2012 0.72 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
HEH/NA 21.02.2007%29.05.2012
28,000,000 - 28,000,000
Other employees
HtEE
In aggregate 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012 0.72 13,800,000 - 13,800,000
Ch 21.02.2007%29.05.2012
Eligible participant 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
RERZEE 21,02.2007%29.05.2012
48,900,000 - 48,900,000
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Notes: B 3E -

@ The vesting period of the share options is from the date of * ZEBREZBBHIEREBBERTEHERB AL -
the grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

**  The exercise period will lapse in three months after the »* (TEAHEREEREEREE=EARNKK
resignation of the eligible employee.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to o MAARHETHRR  BITARSBRAREEURE 5B
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other EZITHEBETRAE -
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

As at 31st December 2011, the number of shares in RZE——F+-A=+—HB EERBEEREAZNEL
respect of which options had been granted and remaining B mmARITE2ZERREZ R E B /48,900,000
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was B BERARRRZAZBBITRAZ2.46% °
48,900,000 shares, representing 2.46% of the shares of

the Company in issue at that date.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BEROIES 2L H
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Options” above, B EXCTHERRIE | — ST EE N ARRISHEEMBER
at no time during the year was the Company or any of AIRFAREL2EEMEH  RMEARBEEHFEEZTH
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable ABAEEE AN RS A HE AR 2 RIS EH MR
the Company’s Directors or chief executives to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2011, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO shows that other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors
and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued
share capital of the Company:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each

FERR
R-BE——F+-A=+—H FARARBEEHFRHAGK
336k FEZ T ERRERMEBTR - R EXAEKES

METEFRERTRABZERN  UTHRREHEAR
RAHEBEARREBRITRA ZBREE

EREEETEERZTFR

Number of shares held

FrERHEE

Percentage in
total number of
Name of shareholder Direct interest Indirect interest Total issued shares
HERTRSE
BRREE HiEER BEER k] HYEAL
Mr. Wong Chung Tak (Note) T B8 72 5 A& (i &) 7,100,000 1,439,652,623 1,446,752,623 72.83%
Ms. Ng Ka Fong, Jenny (Note) & 52 % % £ (Fff %) 6,900,000 1,439,852,623 1,446,752,623 72.83%

Note: B 5t -

1,432,752,623 shares are held through Thing On Group Limited,
a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Wong Chung
Tak (“Mr. Wong”), the Chairman and an executive Director of the
Company. Ms. Ng Ka Fong, Jenny (“Ms. Ng”) is the spouse of Mr.
Wong, and both of them are deemed to be interested in (i) options
granted by the Company to Mr. Wong exercisable into 7,100,000
shares of the Company; (ii) options granted by the Company to
Ms. Ng exercisable into 6,900,000 shares of the Company; and
(i) 1,432,752,623 shares held through Thing On Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at
31st December 2011.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS HERXS

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group has HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE KAEEETTT
the following continuing connected transactions which 5| 2 ARYR _E TR0 5 14A. 341K RIS 8 L IR R EA R 2 BRI RS

are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval 2 :

requirement under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules:

1. On 19th August 2009, Yue Tin Development
Limited (“Yue Tin”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement
(“World-Wide Tenancy Agreement”) with Junny
Diamond Co. Limited (“Junny”), a company wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Wong Chung Tak, the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company,
for the leasing to Junny the property located at
Room 2401, 24th Floor, World-Wide House, 19 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong from 19th August
2009 to 31st December 2011 at a monthly rental of
approximately HK$267,000.

As announced by the Company on 16th June
2009, the annual cap for the financial year ended
31st December 2011 in respect of the World-Wide
Tenancy Agreement is HK$3,199,145.

On 3rd October 2011, Yue Tin and Junny
have entered into a termination agreement to
terminate the World-Wide Tenancy Agreement
with retrospective effect from 1st October 2011,
pursuant to which both parties agreed to waive the
requirement for termination pursuant to the World-
Wide Tenancy Agreement.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the
aggregate rental received from Junny in respect of
the World-Wide Tenancy Agreement amounted to
approximately HK$2,399,000.

2. On 19th August 2009, Yue Tin entered into another
tenancy agreement (“Ronsdale Tenancy Agreement”)
with Junny for the leasing to Junny the property
located at Flat A, 23rd Floor, Block 2, and Car
Parking Space No. 31 on 2nd Basement, Ronsdale
Garden, 25 Tai Hang Drive, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong
Kong (the “Ronsdale Property”) from 19th August
2009 to 31st December 2011 at a monthly rental of
approximately HK$27,000.

RZZBEZANFENA+NLA  ARBIZ2EHENEBR
AIMARRARAR (AE])  BEFNEBEBABRA
BB (—HBEARBERFNTEETEE
S2ERERBEBZARN)FT—HERRE (B&ﬂ(
HAWRZ] RBEIR-_ZTAFENATLERE
——F+ZA=+— E%ﬁuﬂmﬁ%7waﬁmﬁ
AN EBPRESBETP19RIREAE241E2401F
ZWE o

HIMARNBR-_EZNFNATANBZAMG  HEZ
E——F+-A=+—HIHBEE  BREARHH
FE EBRA3,199,1458 7T °

R-F——F+A=R WAESENRT—HRLH
FURUERFER G EPE—F——F+H—H
AR - BREBR I BHRESRERERERIERD
& IRXHTE ©

BE_ZT——F+_A=+—BIFE RERKH
BiHzRE R E 2 258 € KA A 4)2,399,00078

JT °©

RZZBEZAFNA+ILE  WHEEMNETS—HH
Az (EERARZD  RABIRZZETAEN
AthBAE=-ZE——F+-_A=+—HHMUARY
27,0008 T AR BB B A I A {E255 B ELE
FEEOSEAE I WERME —EAE M H31K
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As announced by the Company on 16th June 2009,
the annual cap for the financial year ended 31st
December 2011 in respect of the Ronsdale Tenancy
Agreement is HK$320,604.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the
aggregate rental received from Junny in respect
of the Ronsdale Tenancy Agreement amounted to
HK$320,604.

On 3rd October 2011, Oriental Grand Development
Limited (“Oriental Grand”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement
(“BEA Tenancy Agreement”) with Junny, for the
leasing to Junny certain portion of the property
located at 17/F., BEA Harbour View Centre, 56
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong from 1st
October 2011 to 30th September 2014 at a monthly
rental of HK$140,000.

As announced by the Company on 3rd October
2011, the annual cap for the financial year ended
31st December 2011 in respect of the BEA Tenancy
Agreement is HK$420,000.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the
aggregate rental received from Junny in respect
of the BEA Tenancy Agreement amounted to
approximately HK$420,000.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the
Company have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into:

1. in the normal and usual course of the Group’s
business;

2. on normal commercial terms; and

3. have been carried out in accordance with the terms
of the agreements governing such transactions that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and provided a letter
to the Company confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions:

1. have received the approval of the Board;

2. have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

3. have not exceeded the annual cap.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases from the five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 75.9%
of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from
the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 33.0% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the Group’s revenue from the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 44.5% of the
Group’s total turnover and revenue from the largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately
21.1% of the Group’s total revenue.

None of the Directors of the Company, their associates,
nor any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ARBZBIUFANTEZCRM LA HEMER S I
BAZEXHHE :

1. RAKEZARREEXEKBESIL:

2. BRERGFTL R

3. EBABREXRFZHEAGFBRAFEEANEAAT
BREBE M mAETT

ARARBHEEN DLAEEBERS  LEAKRTE
A—{mft  BREABERS -

1. EEBBERS A

2. CREBAEZSXRZIZEBMEMAIL R

3. YEMBBFELREE-
FEREFRHESD

FRAEERADIARERZRBEASELRERD
75.9% EFBRREASAEEB KB  GAKBARE
##933.0% °

FRN - AEBREAARFZBAGAEEBREEBE K
A#445%  ERBERATATEZERA  EEAEE B
WA #721.1% o

ARRZES HEIHRASBEEERARAKATL
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o (B 24 -
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31st December 2011.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st December 2011.

AUDITOR

Due to the merger of the businesses of Grant Thornton
(now known as JBPB & Co. and BDO Limited (“BDO”) to
practise in the name of BDO. Grant Thornton resigned as
auditors of the Company with effect from 30th November
2010, and BDO was appointed as auditor of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company held on
28th December 2010. Save as aforesaid, there were no
changes in auditor during the past three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2012 AGM to re-
appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

Wong Chung Tak
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12th March 2012
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The Company is committed to maintaining corporate
governance of high standards and quality procedures.
The Company has put in place governance practices
with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and
quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability
to shareholders for the sake of maximizing returns to
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the
Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)
as its own code of corporate governance practices. The
Company has also complied with all the code provisions
under the CG Code except for the deviations from code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1 which are explained in the
following relevant paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding director’s securities
transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, all Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code for the year
ended 31st December 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the
Company, as well as the supervision of the business,
approval of strategic plans and monitoring the Company’s
performance.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings
a year at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to
other Board meetings that are required for significant and
important issues, and for statutory purposes. Appropriate
and sufficient information is provided to Board members
in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the Group’s
latest developments and thus can assist them in
discharging their duties.

B o *a N AN =
TEERRE
ARABARHERERAAZRFNLEER  ALT

EHTEEERER  BRIIEHBRROBE BHE
B EE FRHEREELER UKKCBEREH-

EEERER

ARBERMBEBEXHAMERDA ([BXM]) &S L
AR (TETHRA) MR+ Rz EREARF R TR
(TEFREBTUN) ZFUEX  ERARRIZERERR
PR BRIREEST AR A 21 RAL N ZERETAE
ETXABBEELRE)  ARRANCETEEERT
AIET 2 2 88T R -

EZETESRS

ARBERMLIARRM R+ PrEc EmEITAESET
BHZRHZFESU(RETA D ERARRERES
ETEHEXH 2 BRTER -

REEAAHRRESFEZARSH 2RESCER
REE-T——F+-A=+-BLFER RIHHA
BAEFR 2B o

BExg
EXESRERERERALRR YEEEBEEYR AR
ERBREEARAZRR -

BRAREAREREHUREZEENBTZHEMESTE SR
S BEZERNEFERT -AEREE  8FHRIET
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The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board meetings and draft of which will be circulated
to all Directors for their review, comments and approval
after the meetings. The minutes books are kept by the
Company Secretary and will be open for inspection by
the Directors upon request. All Directors have access to
the advice and service of the Company Secretary who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the procedures
are followed and that all applicable laws and regulations
are complied with.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code A.2.1 stipulates that the responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive should be divided. The
roles and functions of the chief executive have been
performed by the Board of the Company and the Directors
believed that such arrangement enables different talents
and expertise of the Directors to be best utilized to the
benefits of the Group.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. Non-executive Directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but they
are subject to the retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
with specific terms of reference, which is responsible
for arranging new appointment of directors and senior
executives of the Company, and for reviewing the
succession plan for executive Directors and senior
executives of the Company.
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BREZEEZVHAANWERECE  YRNERKLH
RUZXREESHME BRIk - ERCEHRATNE
RE MEZZRKEARETEN RANERESS
RERRESSRBREFLETERZRERLAN -ZEF
BRI ERARMENE R LR -

FRRTHAR

SAMRXA2ARE TREITBRARZBBEBENR - 7TK
BEZARRBECHARAEZTEHT MESFHE
ERRHEREE 2 TR ERERBURERE A
KEAR -

RE ERNRRES

SAMRXALARE FATEESZRERBREEEH L
AEXER ARRIFATEZFCREYEREES A
WERBARRAZARNMAUNEEL B =FHERE K-

ARAERI—ERZZE S UrIAABNBESRE
BERARAREEERSRITHRABUARER L AR
TEERERTRASNBELRT -




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of two executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chung Tak
Mr. Tse Kam Fai

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Miss Chong Kally

To the best knowledge of the Company, Mr. Wong Ngo,
Derick, a non-executive Director of the Company, is the
son of the elder brother of Mr. Wong Chung Tak, the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company.
Save as aforesaid, there is no financial, business and
family relationship among members of the Board. All of
them are free to exercise their independent judgment. The
biographies of the Directors are set out in pages 11 to 17
of the annual report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, of whom Mr. Chung Koon Yan,
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and a member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has
more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing
and taxation.

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart, has been serving the
Board for more than 18 years. Mr. Lee is experienced in
management and development of business in the PRC.
During the services to the Board in the past years, he
contributed to the Board and the Company valuable
advice on diverse aspects.
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Miss Chong Kally is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a
member of Association for Investment Management and
Research. She has been working in the banking finance
sector over 10 years.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors the annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31st December 2011, 5 Board
meetings were held. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board
meetings and are given sufficient time to review the
documents and information to be discussed in Board
meetings in advance.

Number of

Name of Directors meetings attended

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chung Tak (Chairman) 5/5
Mr. Tse Kam Fai 5/5

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris 5/5
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick 3/5

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chung Koon Yan 5/5
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 5/5
Miss Chong Kally 4/5

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees under
the Board, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate
Governance Committee and Operational Committee, to
oversee different aspects of the Group’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
Composition

The Company formulated written terms of reference for
the Audit Committee in accordance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee consists of
all the independent non-executive Directors.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the members of
the Audit Committee consisted of:

Mr. Chung Koon Yan (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart
Miss Chong Kally

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation
or dismissal; reviewing the interim and annual reports and
accounts of the Group; and overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Audit
Committee held 2 meetings. Each committee meeting
has supplied with the necessary financial information of
the Group for members to consider, review and access
significant issues arising from the work conducted.

The following table shows the attendance of members at
meetings of the Audit Committee during the year:

Number of

Name of members meetings attended

Mr. Chung Koon Yan 2/2
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 2/2
Miss Chong Kally 1/2

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

- reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31st
December 2010 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30th June 2011;
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- discussed with the management of the Company
over the completeness, fairness and adequacy of
accounting standards and policies of the Group
in the preparation of the 2011 interim and annual
financial statements;

= reviewed and discussed with the external auditor
over the financial reporting of the Company;

— recommended to the Board, for the approval by
shareholders, of the re-appointment of the auditor;
and

- reviewed the internal control procedures of the
Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference
for the Remuneration Committee in accordance with
requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee consists of one executive or non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors,
and an independent non-executive Director should take
up the role of chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, namely Mr. Wong Chung Tak, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chung Koon Yan (as Chairman), Mr. Lee Kuo Ching,
Stewart and Miss Chong Kally.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing human resources management policies; and
determining the compensation and benefit plans of senior
executives, as well as setting performance goals for senior
executives.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the
Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting for reviewing the
remuneration package of the Directors of the Company.

Number of

Name of members meetings attended

Mr. Chung Koon Yan (Chairman) 11
Mr. Wong Chung Tak 1/1
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 1/1
Miss Chong Kally 0/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference
for the Nomination Committee in accordance with
requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination
Committee consists of one executive or non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors,
and an executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Wong Chung Tak (as Chairman), and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung
Koon Yan, Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart, and Miss Chong
Kally.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and supervising the structure, size and
composition of the Board; identifying qualified individuals
to become members of the Board; accessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the
Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to access the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and the Directors to be re-elected at the 2011 annual
general meeting of the Company before putting forth for
discussion and approval by the Board, and also reviewed
the composition of the Board.

Number of

Name of members meetings attended

Mr. Wong Chung Tak (Chairman) 1/1
Mr. Chung Koon Yan 1/1
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 1/1
Miss Chong Kally 0/1

OPERATIONAL COMMITTEE

The Operational Committee of the Company was
established on 18th March 2005, and the quorum of the
Committee consists of at least two executive Directors
and one independent non-executive Director.

The Operational Committee meets on ad hoc basis to
exercise the powers, authorities and discretions of the
Board in accordance with its written terms of reference.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group
and ensure that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement of external auditor of
the Company, BDO Limited, about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 38
to 39.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any matters uncertainly
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the
remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor,
BDO Limited, is as follows:

Services rendered by BDO Limited

Audit services
Non-audit services

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a
proper and effective system of internal control of the
Group. The internal control system includes safeguard of
the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The
Board has delegated to management the implementation
of all relevant financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management function without a defined
framework.
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During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Board
has conducted a review of the system of internal control
to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the system.
The Board shall conduct such review at least once
annually.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of good
communications with all shareholders. The Company’s
annual general meeting is a valuation forum for the
Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of
each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee together with the external
auditor are present to answer shareholders’ questions.
The annual report together with annual general meeting
circular is distributed to all the shareholders at least 20
clear business days before the annual general meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by
poll except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the
AGM will be voted by poll.

TERERMS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR E

IBDO

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHENZHEN HIGH-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited (the "Company")
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 40 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and
company’s statements of financial position as at 31st
December 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31st December 2011
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number P0O5018

Hong Kong, 12th March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= A 2\ L
%\EEEEM ﬁﬁﬁ
for the year ended 31st December 2011

BE2—F——F+_A=+—HIFE

Notes 2011 2010
Bt 5 —E——F —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx T
(restated)
(251)
Revenue WA 5 66,500 712,404
Cost of sales and services $HE R AR TS B AR
(including provision for properties (BEFEMERE
held for sale of HK$12,550,000 12,550,000/ 7T
(2010: write back of provision for (ZE—Z&F:
properties held for sale BRFEMERE
of HK$428,000)) 428,000/ 7T)) 20(a) (25,188) (492,979)
Gross profit EAELE 41,312 219,425
Other financial income Hth & mh i es 7 32,104 13,738
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets & A FEIABRZEZEREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZATE(EE) M= 23 (10,240) 13,573
Other income H fh e 8 6,823 2,262
Selling and distribution costs HE R H A (686) (1,207)
Administrative expenses THHAX (13,209) (14,979)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB QR 2K 32 5,241 =
Gain on disposals of investment HEREMERE
properties 15(b) 403 -
Impairment loss on loans and B R EWRIE 2 RE R
receivables 22 (2,469) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A EeRMEE 2 RERE
financial assets 19 (331) (525)
Gain in fair value of investment BEWELNFERE
properties 15 21,970 90,003
Profit before income tax B BT 18 Bt A% F 9 80,918 322,290
Income tax expense RS 10 (10,096) (5,131)
Profit for the year FEERF 70,822 317,159
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= A2\ =<
RETERER
for the year ended 31st December 2011

BE-F——F1+=f=+—HIFE

Notes 2011 2010
Bt 3 —E——fF —E-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THER FHET
(restated)
(&%)
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 mE WKz
Exchange difference on translation of ~ R EIRFINERK 2 [& 5 =58
foreign operations 26,211 20,467
Exchange difference on translation of ~ HBEIEINEK 2 [E K ZFER
foreign operations released upon R INETS 2 B 1 E B
disposal of a subsidiary with % B
foreign operations (2,790) -
Revaluation gain on transfer of leasehold #E#FHE +ih MIEFZE
land and buildings to investment REWFE 2 M=
properties 15(a) 4,674 -
Statutory reserve released upon EERERLERIINEL 2
disposal of a subsidiary with Bt 8 A ARy AR B
foreign operations (26) =
Other comprehensive income for FREMBIRE 2 E R
the year, net of tax 28,069 20,467
Total comprehensive income FRE2EKEEE
for the year 98,891 337,626
Profit for the year attributable to AATER AR
the owners of the Company KEERF 11 70,822 317,159
Total comprehensive income KABEBALREE
for the year attributable to EhzEkEASE
the owners of the Company 98,891 337,626
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share attributable to KARERA
the owners of the Company EhEERER 13
- Basic - AR 0.036 0.167
~ Diluted -#E 0.036 0.159

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4%} 4 1




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R IR
as at 31st December 2011
RZF——F+ZA=+—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Loans and receivables
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets

Properties held for sale

Trade receivables

Other receivables, prepayments
and deposits

Loans and receivables

EEREE
FRBEE
REME
VERY: ST
BN EKRE
AHHESRERE

RBEE
FEME

JE Yo B 58

H o FEUYCFOR
BENRERRE
ERREYGEA

Financial assets at fair value through 1% 22 (&5 A

profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Other payables, deposits received
and accrued charges

Tax payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

BaEf eRMEE
RekBReEE

NERHERE

RBEE
HMENHE 2R
B REER

R

RBEERE

REERRBAR

Notes
it &

15
16

19

20
21

25
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31st December

31st December

1st January

2011 2010 2010
—E——F “ZT-TF —E-%F
+=RA=+-HB +ZA=+—H —HA—H
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTER FHET FET
(restated) (restated)

(2%1) (E7))

659,700 623,480 533,477
7,514 21,127 21,897
133,500 - -
383 680 2,300
801,097 645,287 557,674
299,402 132,702 612,653
2,220 1,890 3,333
8,839 1,142 8,437
19,000 11,353 20,400
57,115 57,124 11,885
719,031 980,984 325,970
1,105,607 1,185,195 982,678
- 1,176 =
1,105,607 1,186,371 982,678
19,884 18,124 52,104
9,561 8,848 8,338
29,445 26,972 60,442
1,076,162 1,159,399 922,236
1,877,259 1,804,686 1,479,910




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARE M IERR R

as at 31st December 2011
RZE——F+=ZHA=+—H

31st December 31st December 1st January
Notes 2011 2010 2010
P = e —T-TF
+=ZA=+-B +ZA=+—H —H—H
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T FhR T
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (&%)
Non-current liabilities F¥REBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAGE 26 22,158 18,677 16,477
Net assets BEFE 1,855,101 1,786,009 1,463,433
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to the owners ~ AR EHEH AEIGEE
of the Company
Share capital N 27 397,321 397,321 373,321
Reserves s 29 1,457,780 1,388,688 1,090,112
Total equity EREE 1,855,101 1,786,009 1,463,433
Wong Chung Tak Tse Kam Fai
THRE EiE)
Director Director
BE EFE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BB

as at 31st December 2011
RZFE——#Ff+=ZHA=+—H

Notes 2011 2010
M &E —E-—F —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RFEE 16 8 14
Interests in subsidiaries NG F 17 4 4
12 18
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments H b JE W kIR -
and deposits B FRIERES 21 443 376
Amounts due from subsidiaries U H B 1 B R IE 17 1,363,084 1,289,188
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEeEE 24 74,776 46,178
1,438,303 1,335,742
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables, deposits received Hitb e 50E - EWIES
and accrued charges MEGEA 1,384 1,541
Amount due to a subsidiary JEA — T A R 5/ IH 17 152,470 =
Tax payables JRE 1~ 75 78 1,117 1,117
154,971 2,658
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,283,332 1,333,084
Net assets BEEFME 1,283,344 1,333,102
EQUITY e
Share capital B A 27 397,321 397,321
Reserves ] 29 886,023 935,781
Total equity RSB 1,283,344 1,333,102
Wong Chung Tak Tse Kam Fai
THRE AR e
Director Director
EFE E=a
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

MA@ E TR

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

Proposed
final and
Property Share Capital ~ Statutory special
Share Share  Contributed ~ valuation  Translation option Warrant ~ redemption reserve Retained  dividends
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve resenve fund  eamings EEFHR Total
B&  RBEE  RGB% YEGMERRE  EXBE  BREEE JREIRE ErREBE iREREC  REEW  GARR a5
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn TR TR Thn ThR A Thn THn Thn
(restated) (restated)
(&) (E2])
As at 1t January 2010 H-2-35-8-A
As originall presented Rl 3713321 602,457 1423 - 36,090 5,598 2830 4628 2% 165,662 - 1462080
Adjustment on eary adoption of B2 FAEEEEH
amendments fo HKAS 12 EAV VA EPE S - - - - - - - - - 1,408 - 1403
At st January 2010 HZ2-%5-f-8
(restated) (E2) 373,321 602,457 21,428 - 36,090 5,598 2830 4623 % 167,065 - 1463438
Share repurchased and canceled ~ BE R ERL (24,000) (63,04) - - - - - 24,000 = = - (63,049
Evgenses oured incomecton 73 L TR ER
vith exercise of unlited warants ~ MEE 2 - 6] - - - - - - - - - 6]
Exercise of unlisted warrants AEFLTARER 48,000 2830 = = = = 2.8%) - = = = 48000
Transactions with owners EEEANRS 24000 (60,220) - - - - 28%) 24,000 = - - (15,050
Profit for the year EERA - - - - - - - - - 317,159 - 317,159
Other comprehensive income ~~ Eff2EH#
Bxchange dfference on tenslaon BRI ERHES
of foeign operafions LEREE - - - - 20,467 - - - - - - 0467
Total comprehensive income ~~ EE2ANHEE
for the year - - - - 20,467 - - - - 317,159 - 337,626
Proposed final 2010 dividend ~ BE=§-FTEXERE - - - - - - - - - (29.799) 279 -
At 31t December 2010 H-B-%E+2AZ1-A
(restated) (&3) 397,31 542,231 211,428 - 56,957 559 - 26,623 % 454,425 29,799 1,786,009
As at 1st January 2011 W-E--%-5-8
As originally presented B 397,321 542,231 M43 - 56,357 5,598 - 26,623 2% 4091 29,799 1,772,561
Adjustment on eary adoption of ~ ERRHEAE
amendments to HKAS 12 BVl bk - - - - - - - - - 13,448 - 13,448
At 1st January 2011 (restated) H-E--%-A-R(E]) 397,321 542,231 242 - 56,357 5,598 - 26,623 2% 454,425 29,799 1,786,009
Paid 2010 final dividend EN-5-ZF78kE - - - - - - - - - - (29,799) (29,799)
Transactions with owners EEEANRS - - - - - - - - - - (29,799) (29,799)
Profit for the year EERA - - - - - - - - - 70822 - 70822
Other comprehensive income ~~ Eff2EH#
Disposals of subsicaries HEHBAR - - - - 2790) - - - (26) - - (2816)
Revaluation gan on tranfer of BATETHRETE
leasenold land and buidings RENE ERNE
o investment properties - - - 4674 - - - - - - - 4,674
Exchange diference on rensetion 50 ERFEL
offoreign operations LEREE - - - - %214 - - - - - - %214
Total comprehensive income ~~ EE2ERELE
for the year - - - 4674 242 - - - (26) 70,822 - 98,801
Proposed final and special BE-%--£%8
2011 dividends REBRE . - [t - - - - . - et -
At 31t December 2011 R-8--F1+-A=t-R 397,321 542,207 112,495* 4614t 79,078 5,508* - 28,623 - 493,461 190744 1,855,101

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves

of HK$1,457,780,000 (2010: HK$1,388,688,000 (restated))

* ZERBRAERREMBMRRE ZERE FHHE1,457,780,000
BT (ZE—ZF : 1,388,688,0008 7T (£51)) °

in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

.-\-| AN B2
AR i JILEE ?E
for the year ended 31st December 2011
BE-F——F+-A=+—AULFE

Notes 2011 2010
Bt 5 —E——F ZE-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHER FHBT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBELEZBRERE
Profit before income tax B BT 45 250 Al s 7 80,918 322,290
Adjustments for: St A TERE -
Interest income B A (32,104) (13,738)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEREBEIINE
and equipment 9 1,041 1,106
Gain in fair value of investment HEMENTENE
properties 15 (21,970) (90,008)
Loss on disposals of property, HEME BEREHBZESE
plant and equipment 9 16 66
Gain on disposals of investment HEREE 7 W
properties 15(b) (403) -
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries LEM B ARz W 32 (5,241) =
Impairment loss on A EeRmEE 2 RERBE
available-for-sale financial assets 19 331 525
Impairment loss on loans and ERREWGRIE 2 RERBE
receivables 22 2,469 -
Gain on disposals of assets HESBATEEE
classified as held for sale 2 Wiz 25 (94) -
Written-off of other payables M EMmENTERESER
and accruals 8 - 5)
Provision/(Write back of provision) for TEMERE (BOEE)
properties held for sale 12,550 (428)
Operating profit before movements Rt BRSSP 2L
in working capital i A 37,513 219,813
(Increase)/Decrease in properties FEWMECEM A
held for sale (179,250) 480,379
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables M5 B R (3 ) (330) 1,443
(Increase)/Decrease in other receivables, — Efth EU A - B FHIE K
prepayments and deposits me (gm /R (3,833) 7,295
(Increase)/Decrease in loans EX kMR GRE GE M) R
and receivables (143,616) 9,047
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets BATEIAERRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREERLD, (Em) 9 (45,239)
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables, HitvfEf 508 BEE R
deposits received and accrued FEETE AL, CRd)
charges 2,184 (88,975)
Cash (used in)/generated from REEK (BB EE2ES
operations (287,323) 638,763
Income tax paid BT PTEH (9,383) (2,421)
Net cash (used in)/generated from AMERKE(BH)  ELE
operating activities ZH L FEE (296,706) 636,342
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

.-\-u ANy =1
VIR i JILEE ?E
for the year ended 31st December 2011

BE—FE——F+_H=+—HIFFE

Notes 2011 2010
Bt 3 —E——fF —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTERT FBT
Cash flows from investing activities REEXBELZHELHRE
Interest received B U H 8 28,216 13,738
Purchases of property, plant and BEME  WFER&
equipment (2,260) (468)
Proceeds from disposals of assets PESHEAFERE
classified held for sale Z S kIA 1,270 =
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  BE KR
plant and equipment ZFfE ?K 306 67
Disposals of subsidiaries, net of cash LEMBAR - HALEZ
and cash equivalents disposed of Re &fﬁfﬁ S 32 2,625 =
Proceeds from disposals of HEREYMEZFEHIEA
investment properties 4,753 -
Net cash generated from RERBELEZHEFHE
investing activities 34,910 13,337
Cash flows from financing BEXBELECRESRE
activities
Dividends paid to the owners of ENERAREEARE
the Company (29,799) -
Repurchase of shares % [0l iR 15 - (63,042)
Expenses incurred in connection EREERRMIMEE 2R
with repurchase of shares - (8)
Issue of warrants BITRREE - 48,000
Net cash used in financing activities BEZEEEHH L FE (29,799) (15,050)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash AERBESEEED)
and cash equivalents B mFE (291,595) 634,629
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzHeRkBEeEE
beginning of the year 980,984 325,970
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JMNEMER&EH) 2 2 29,642 20,385
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZESRBREEE
end of the year 719,031 980,984
Analysis of the balances of cash REeRBESEEERI N
and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash BITHEB MRS 6,286 14,503
Time deposits with original maturity REEFHBETZ=EA
of less than three months 2 EBEFHR 124,646 966,481
Highly liquid funds aEnBnEe 588,099 -
719,031 980,984
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk Y et

for the year ended 31st December 2011
B2 —F——F1-_A=+—HIFEF

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability. The
addresses of its registered office and principal
place of business are disclosed in the corporate
information to the annual report. The Company’s
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “SEHK”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
Details of the activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.
The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to
as the “Group” hereinafter. The Group is principally
engaged in property investment, development and
trading, securities investment and securities trading,
and provision of financial services. There were no
significant changes in the Group’s operations during
the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company is Thing On Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company and are rounded
in thousands unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 40 to 143 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the SEHK.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2011 were approved for issue by the
board of directors on 12th March 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective 1st January 2011

In the current year, the Group has applied
for the first time the following revision and
amendments to standards and a new
interpretation issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s
financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1st January 2011:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures
Except as explained below, the adoption of
these amended/revised standards and a new
interpretation has no significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) — Financial
Instruments: Disclosures

As part of the Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010, HKFRS 7 has been amended to
enhance the interaction between quantitative
and qualitative disclosures. If the carrying
amount of a financial asset best represents
the maximum exposure to credit risk, the
standard does not require a positive statement
to this effect in the financial statements. This
amended disclosure requirement has been
applied retrospectively. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s trade receivables, loans and
other receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial assets as at 31st December 2011
and 2010. The prior year financial statements
included a positive statement to this effect
which is removed in the 2011 financial
statements following the amendments. The
adoption of the amendments has no impact
on the Group’s reported profit or loss, total
comprehensive income or equity for any period
presented.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

2. RREERMBHREER

(a)

RHe]/ RETERUBREEN-R=2
——F-A-BBEX

RAFE  AEEERAHEESHTMAER
2 AT RN ERRET R—AHNRE
HERRERR-_Z——F-A—BHRKRZE

EHRz AEEMBERE

BANHREER “T-TEREMBRSE
(BTEH%) ERIMERER
BREHEAF2N HREND B
(BT

R (BARMBREE NESTARKERAR
REZRE)-RRE19%

BRGHEREAT (BEF])  HMEALBE

BRIATEEREI  RMZFEERTBIER
MER R —RHRBEAKENMEERRLE
BEAYE-

BB REERET S (FEET) -2 @ TA :
R

BE-_Z-—ZSFEEMZEBYBRRELEINE
FE5] - BB HRE LERBETHRLEBRIAM
BTEEREMBPEZHEOBEEER MR —HA
CRMEENEAESRELRIAALENEKRE
B ZERY BRI R Y AEE
AR - CEFTREESRKECBBIERR - &K
SEZRBER ER R EAMBRFIE - ATt
ELRMEENRATEIABREREZEMEE
ZEAERER-_ZE——FR-_T—FTF+=
A=+ BASEEZERBRZHZAER - UE
FENYBRRSBEH R T EMBEEZH  ©
B ZEBPER T ——FUBHRERPHEM
& IRMZETEHAEBRNE 25 8T A
Migs  2ERSLERESSETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B s ¥R P ot

for the year ended 31st December 2011

BE2—F——F+_A=+—HIFE
2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued) 2. BRMEBYMBEREER(E)

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective 1st January 2011 (Continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies
the definitions of related parties. The new
definitions emphasise a symmetrical view
of related party relationships and clarify the
circumstances in which persons and key
management personnel affect related party
relationships of an entity. The revised standard
also introduces an exemption from the general
related party disclosure requirements for
transactions with government entities that are
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the same government as the
reporting entity. The accounting policy for
related parties has been revised to reflect the
changes in the definitions of related parties
under the revised standard. The adoption of
the revised standard did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance, the
identification of the related parties and the
disclosures of the related party transactions
of the Group. Details of the related party
transactions, including the related comparative
information, are included in note 31.

Early adoption of Amendments to HKAS
12 - Deferred Tax (Recovery of Underlying
Assets)

The HKICPA amended HKAS 12 Income
Taxes to introduce an exception to the
existing principle for the measurement of
deferred tax assets or liabilities arising on
investment property which is measured at fair
value. Currently, HKAS 12 requires an entity
to measure deferred tax relating to an asset
depending on whether the entity expects
to recover the carrying amount of the asset
through use or sale. The amendments to HKAS
12 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
an investment property is recovered entirely
through sale. This presumption is rebutted if
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

(a)

(b)

R/ RETERUBREEN-R=F
——5-A—-REBEXRE)

BB B R F 243 (FIEFT) —EN LK E

BRGFEAF245 (RER]) BBMEL T H
BATMESR HFEERAMEALTAENY
WER UBBEMEBILTEAMBERE R
ABREERNBEALTRR KEITEAE
HEFEER - KXRA—BFRHE - XREH
REAFENBRERZRS  5IAT —RH
BEANIRBEERNH L BEALTHEER
BRI RELETEANRKREEALTESR

MEEE BHRBEALRBAEALZZORK
BYBRERTE FRBEEALIRZZHT
BEBBLRENSHNHES -

RERMBERBSHERUEI12RNBITAR—EL
BR (HEEENRE)

BRI AGEIEE ST EARMEH
MEIASRENRFEFEBNREN X ER
EHRBEEEXABRITRAELPISINER - B
Bl - ARG ERFI2RBRERREZER
FHABFEAKHEREEENREENER
EBIR - BEGFEAF12RMNEITASIA—
EREBORR  —ARENERE2DERE
EROEBE - ERISWHER  WRREY
XRAFMERN-—EXBEARF  HANE
E-BRERAEREELMAERENMEMER
AR  MARBEBHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

Early adoption of Amendments to HKAS
12 - Deferred Tax (Recovery of Underlying
Assets) (Continued)

At 31st December 2011, the Group held
investment properties with an aggregate fair
value amounting to HK$659,700,000 (2010:
HK$623,480,000). These investment properties
are all situated in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). In Hong Kong,
land leases are generally expected to be
renewed without a payment of a market-based
premium and this expectation is reflected in
the market price of properties in Hong Kong. In
addition, the Group does not have the business
model of holding investment properties until
the land leases expire. Given these, the
directors assessed that the Group would not
consume substantially the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties in Hong
Kong over time. Consequently, as required
by the amendment, the Group re-measured
the deferred tax relating to these investment
properties based on the presumption that it is
recovered entirely by sale as if this new policy
had always been applied. There is no major
tax consequence in Hong Kong arising from
the sale of investment properties as capital
gain tax is currently not applicable in Hong
Kong. For the investment properties located
in the PRC, the Group’s business model is
that entity owning the investment property will
recover the value through use and on this basis
the presumption of sale has been rebutted.
Consequently, the Group has continued to
recognise deferred tax on the basis that the
values of these investment properties are
recovered through use.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

2. RMEBMBHRESER (H)

(b)

RERABEBEHEAFI12RNBITR-EE
BiE (MBEEENWE) (5)

R-B——F+-A=+—H AEEZHAR
3 {E 48 %8 5659,700,0008 7T (— T — T F ¢
623,480,000/ 7T) 2R EWME - HEMELE
NMRBEERPEARLENME ([FE]) - RES
BHERIT AL —RATRAME —BUTE
AEBOGRE EBRHERBEESMEND
SERE - WIN AEEREFEREMERE T
AL R EE o ER Bl EEAFA
SESRTSRERENELEL FEREREAR
ERREMENKERZ - At - EFTAHTE
ERzPRAHERDMES  BUEBEHK
R—EWRA ASEEFTEEHRENE
BEERITE - AR B ATE AU e B30 T @ A R
58 EBEBRALEREMELSEEARN
BHBR - HURNPRENEENE  ~AEENE
BEACERBRENREMESRBARERAKE
BERRHERREEAEECHER - Bt
REEREREEREMENEBERRBBER
i 4 B ) B E R EE R IE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B s ¥R P ot

for the year ended 31st December 2011
B2 —F——Ff —H="1—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued) 2. HEHEBMKREED (EH)
(b) Early adoption of Amendments to HKAS (b) REEAET RS ERF12RMWET A —IEL
12 - Deferred Tax (Recovery of Underlying HE(HREENKE) (F)

Assets) (Continued)

This change in accounting policy has been EHEHHREFCEBAERA  ER =%
applied retrospectively by restating the opening —EEN-T——F-A—ARHVARE 18
balances at 1st January 2010 and 2011, with ERBHEZE_T-—TF+_A=+—HILFE
consequential adjustments to comparatives for MEBREE - BERTATFERSTEENE
the year ended 31st December 2010. This led EHEEESFERIOT

to a reduction in the amount of deferred tax
liabilities arising from fair value gain as follows:

31st December 31st December 1st January
2011 2010 2010
—E-—-F —E-%F —T-%F
+tZA=+-8B +=ZA=+—H —A—H
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER THET TR
Consolidated statement of FEUBEMRRE
financial position
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities EEHBEERD (1,914) (13,448) (1,403)
Increase in retained earnings R E & 132 o 1,914 13,448 1,403
Consolidated statement of REEZEWER
comprehensive income
Decrease in income tax expense FEHR L 1,914 12,045 1,403
Increase in basic earnings BREARZRFEM
per share (HK cent) (B Al) 0.1 0.6 0.1
Increase in diluted earnings BREABRFEM
per share (HK cent) (&1L) 0.1 0.6 0.1
As a result of the above retrospective HREABEMEFH>BNEINNRE - 5=
reclassification and restatement, an additional —E-ZF-A-HALENEIMNRAMBEREER
consolidated statement of financial position as HREBSHTENFIRPBRENEINER -

at 1st January 2010 is presented in accordance
with HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(c)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets '

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Liabilities *

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of

(Revised) Other Comprehensive Income 2

Amendments to HKAS 9 Presentation - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Liabilities

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments °

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements ®

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities ®

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement ®

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements *

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2012

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2013

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2014

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2015

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the de-
recognition disclosure requirements for transfer
transactions of financial assets and allow users
of financial statements to better understand the
possible effects of any risks that may remain
with the entity on transferred assets. The
amendments also require additional disclosures
if a disproportionate amount of transfer
transactions are undertaken around the end of
a reporting period.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

2. RMEBMBHRESER (H)

(c)

BRI RERZHTEETERUKR

HER

AR RAEEz MBHRAAOH K
BRI BB RELRE M - MR RER
WAREAREERPRM

BRMBHRERUETH BE-cREEER

CHES)
BEMBREENETR KBE-REcmERE
CHES) P&V
BRGTERER Hip2EhEEE H25
(&B153T)
BHG T EENR 2 -BHEEMEER
CHES TREE
BRI BRE LR E%R SRIES
BEMBREENEI0R  HARBRR
ERPBREENE1S REEMTEER
BEMBREENEIE AT EETES
ERETERSE7%2011) BURKHES

! BERAR-_E——FtA-RAERFZRRABZ
FE B

2 BERAR-_E-—_F-A-RAERFZERRABZ
FE B

8 BERAR-_E-—=F-HA-RAERxZERABZ
FE B

¢ HEAR-_ZE-NF-A-AERAIZERRABZ
FE B

° BERAR-_ZE-RF-A-RAERHZERRABZ
FE B

EBH B RAETH (ETH) - RE -2
EEHR

BRMBIWEERETHRAEFTANBCE R IEFER
TREENBERINEER R URMHKR
REREEF THREMRRAEDRELES
REEMNERMAREKNNTE - BRI FEK
BIMEE  MRAODERERERETEZH
HERS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk Y et

for the year ended 31st December 2011

e —_T——Ff_HA=1+—HIFFE
2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued) 2. BRMEBYMBEREER(E)

(c)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified
into financial assets measured at fair value
or at amortised cost depending on the
entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.
Fair value gains or losses will be recognised
in profit or loss except for those non-trade
equity investments, which the entity will have
a choice to recognise the gains and losses in
other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries
forward the recognition and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that
are designated at fair value through profit or
loss, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of that
liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS
9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
de-recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor
has control when it has power over the investee
(whether or not that power is used in practice),
exposure or rights to variable returns from the
investee and the ability to use the power over
the investee to affect those returns. HKFRS 10
contains extensive guidance on the assessment
of control. For example, the standard
introduces the concept of “de facto” control
where an investor can control an investee while
holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting
rights in circumstances where its voting interest
is of sufficiently dominant size relative to the
size and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee.

(c)

BREMIENRERZHTEETERUKR
HER ()

BB BHEERFEIN -2 T A

REEEMGRE LN SREENER
BAVEKRZBERAFENSREELZRE
BOAXRATENSREENSREENS
HESREFUTE - A FERSEIEE (L
FEZBRERERIN) BRERBRBREA - %
ERSUEREA M2 E KSR BREE -
BRMBHRELNEOREERA BTG ER
FIFNEHABERLFERZR  2RAR
BEERAVFEIABERRIN  ABLEED
FERREPMELNAFEZPSENEM
FEWGEER  RIFGELRBEAGTER R
- BEMBREEREORREET LG LR
FIFPNR I ERERHEERERBERRK -

BBR B EERF 105 — 45 & B K&

BEMBREERNFE105 5| AE —EHIER
AHMAERKREER -REEHAZHE B
HBEETERREEZRN (TREEZEHE
EHLETE)  BSRARKEETEZLHRDN
BB SEN  ARTETERREEZE NN
FEBLAZ @B c BRI ERELER
FI0RBEHHGEMNEZREZES - flm
BRSIATEELIZHHMES EE—RKREE
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BABERAEEBATERREENES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(c)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Potential voting rights are considered in
the analysis of control only when these are
substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical
ability to exercise them. The standard explicitly
requires an assessment of whether an
investor with decision making rights is acting
as principal or agent and also whether other
parties with decision making rights are acting
as agents of the investor.

An agent is engaged to act on behalf of and for
the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises its
decision making authority. The implementation
of HKFRS 10 may result in changes in those
entities which are regarded as being controlled
by the Group and are therefore consolidated
in the financial statements. The accounting
requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on
other consolidation related matters are carried
forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied
retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provisions.

HKFRS 12 - Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent
the disclosures requirements about
interests in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements. It also introduces new
disclosure requirements, including those
related to unconsolidated structured entities.
The general objective of the standard is to
enable users of financial statements to evaluate
the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects
of those interests on the reporting entity’s
financial statements.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

2. RMEBMBHRESER (H)

(c)

BRI RERZHTEETERUKR
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BB EERIFE 105 — 5 & BB % (&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B s ¥R P ot

for the year ended 31st December 2011
T —Ft A=+ HULFE

Bz

2.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(c)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of
guidance on how to measure fair value when
it is required or permitted by other standards.
The standard applies to both financial and
non-financial items measured at fair value and
introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy.
The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent
with HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair value as
the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at
the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The
standard removes the requirement to use
bid and ask prices for financial assets and
liabilities quoted in an active market. Rather
the price within the bid-ask spread that is most
representative of fair value in the circumstances
should be used. It also contains extensive
disclosure requirements to allow users of the
financial statements to assess the methods
and inputs used in measuring fair values and
the effects of fair value measurements on
the financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be
adopted early and is applied prospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of these
new/revised HKFRSs and the directors are not
yet in a position to quantify the effects on the
Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention except for
investment properties and certain financial
instruments classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which are stated at
fair values. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in the preparation
of the financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events
and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31st December each
year. Inter-group transactions and balances
together with unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between group companies are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. When unrealised losses
on intra-group asset sales are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also
tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective.
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Business combination and basis of

58 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited SREIIRIIZERERA T

consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with
those used by the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
non-controlling interests either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
BE—F——fFf - H=+—HIFEF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

FTESABEEE (8)

32 EREHRFESEE (H)

3.2 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1st January 2010 (i.e. the date the
Group first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been
accounted for in accordance with the transition
requirements in the standard. Such balances
are not adjusted upon first application of the
standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments
to the cost of these business combinations and
are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interest in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to control the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment loss, if any, unless
the subsidiary is held for sale or included in a
disposal group. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivables at the
reporting date. All dividends whether received
out of the investee’s pre or post acquisition
profits are recognised in the Company’s profit
or loss.

3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of
goods and rendering of services, net of rebates
and discounts. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follows:

Revenue arising from sale of properties
is recognised on the execution of a legal
binding, unconditional and irrevocable sales
contracts. Deposits and instalments received
on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement of
financial position under deposits received.

Property management fee income is recognised
when the related services have been provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on straight-line method over the
term of the relevant lease.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHBERME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Revenue recognition (Continued) 3.4 WA (E)

Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.

Bank interest income is recognised on time-
proportion basis using effective interest
method.

P WA i e S OB e B M S R ©

ROFNBEERELERAERN S AHR -

3.5 Goodwill 3.5 BB
Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being BEBNFSIRKAER DEERE2EER
the excess of the aggregate of consideration ﬁﬁﬁ”ﬁlﬁﬁﬂ.&%ﬂﬁ% BERIABERTE
transferred over the fair value of identifiable i 5l

assets,
acquired.

liabilities and contingent liabilities

Where the fair value of identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the
fair value of consideration paid, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
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losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating CEEBN([REEEBM])  WIRFETH
units (“CGUs”) and is tested annually for BRI (RKFE3.9) - iEERRM S - WEAT
impairment (see note 3.9). For the purpose of EEZEEDNWIRESEBRSELEM

impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment

BFHRECREZHBRMER X - BENE
REZRSELBENSFRAEMAELIRR
BEFREHETRERR

PREEFRFEREZRERELEZHEMS -
EESERECREELBURZMBFRET
BAETRENR ERSELEM KD

before the end of that financial year. When the CHORZEMZERER  MesimEs
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than B UHREEEEZEMRABUENA
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment BEEZREEREARUMSKEZEMZ
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount E(ﬁﬁEZEﬁﬁ@ZﬁEEE & 2 R
of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and EERDREZRAER  BEREZBETT
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on M o

the basis of the carrying amount to each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest
under operating lease to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease.

On initial recognition, investment property
is measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at
fair value. Fair value is determined by external
professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the
nature of the investment property. The carrying
amounts recognised in the statement of
financial position reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes
in the fair value or the sale of an investment
property are included in profit or loss for the
year in which they arise.
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHBERME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment 3.7 NE BERZE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at Y BEREERENERANERRFITE
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation RREEBEINE  —BEECKABEEEE
and impairment losses. The cost of an asset BRFZBEEEZHLZERARMNEERTE
comprises its purchase price and any directly RgMEE 2 BEERBIGRAE -

attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended

use.
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost WEDNEARYE BERZEZGHFTAE
over their estimated useful lives, using straight- HABESEMBEKA - 5 2 E R & 80
line method, at the following useful lives: T
Leasehold land Over the lease terms HELTH RHEH
Buildings 4% or over the remaining BT 4% RTAL 2 R E
terms of the leases FREH BREE
of useful lives, whichever
is shorter
Leasehold Over the lease terms, HAOMERE REEHSF
improvements if shorter, or 5 years (B EHBE)
Furniture, fixtures and ~ 3-5 years GREERRLERE 3-5F
office equipment
Motor vehicles 5-10 years R 5—10%F
The assets’ depreciation method and estimated REBRSAREECTERERMGBHAFEAE
useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if HER R RN EERIELAE -

appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is HBEXEEEE 2 Na A BEREEMERE
determined as the difference between the sales HEEREEIEZBETE  UHRNEREAER -

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s HEXNAFARERAEIRBEERERASSE
carrying amount or recognised as a separate UEE MABRMZER 2 BELEENZRAEE
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable MAARGEBERZER 2K AL EAERR -
that future economic benefits associated with FrEREMAANEEREEAREENFEH
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of MR ERRAXH -

the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to profit or loss during the year in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

3.9

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises the cost of the land together with
direct costs attributable to the completion of
the properties.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries,
property, plant and equipment and interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least
annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. All other
assets are tested for impairment whenever
there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use.
In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent from those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a CGU). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at CGU level.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.9

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment loss recognised for CGU is charged
pro rata to the other assets in the CGU, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost
to sell, or value-in-use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation on amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in
profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

3.10 Financial assets

66 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited SREIIRIIZERERA T

Financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date. All financial assets are
recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way purchases of
financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

FTESABEEE (8)

3.10 ERMEE (H)

3.10 Financial assets (Continued)

De-recognition of financial assets occurs
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred. At each
reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial
assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

These includes financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss and all derivatives other than hedging
instruments.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Derivatives including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments or financial
guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHBERME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial assets (Continued) 3.10 eREE (#)

BAFEIAB R 2@ EE (B)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

WEME THEE - AlEREEN) T ERE
AHEERRATFEIIABRE

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
if the following criteria are met:

reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; or

the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information

- the designation eliminates or significantly - RBETEERIBEERIOETREEFEE

ERERRE 2 Wk BEmELE T — 5
ZERIE 5

BER—HERBEEZ M7 ZAZE
BERBE AR A HIE 2 Bk E 2
RERATFEEEETEERFGEREZ
FH MzAeREEZERTVRZESR
MABXHFARETERZERAR &

about the group of financial assets is
provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded - SREESERETUBUEHEZHZAN
derivative that would need to be PTET R -

separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial RS ERE T ARERNzeREEDER
assets included in this category are measured FEFE MATENEZHREZERNER
at fair value with changes in fair value % B R A B AR IR 7 52 5 B g 3k 2 M 3E3.4
recognised in profit or loss. Dividend and AARRE 7 BRHER

interest income is recognised in accordance

with the Group’s policies in note 3.4 to these

financial statements.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGHBEHME(H)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 ERMEE (H)

3.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do
not qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or
loss arising from a change in the fair value
excluding any dividend and interest income
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the assets
revaluation reserve in equity, except for
impairment losses (see the policy below) and
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
assets, until the financial asset is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest
calculated using effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each reporting date
subsequent to initial recognition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial assets (Continued)
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Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other
than at fair value through profit or loss are
reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from the group
of financial assets. Such observable data
includes but not limited to adverse changes
in the payment status of debtors in the group
and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
group.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

(i)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the year in
which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised at
the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of reversal is recognised in profit
or loss of the year in which the reversal
occurs.

3.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i

)
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Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of
an available-for-sale financial asset
has been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, an amount is
removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss as impairment loss. That
amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and its fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals for investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale
and stated at fair value are not recognised
in profit or loss. The subsequent increase
in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Impairment
losses in respect of debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase in
fair value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after impairment loss was
recognised. Reversal of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses are not reversed
in subsequent periods.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets carried at cost (Continued)

Impairment losses on financial assets
carried at amortised cost are written off
against the corresponding assets directly.
Where the recovery of trade receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the
impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery
of trade receivables is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance
account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in interim
period in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities and unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available for sale
equity security increases in the remainder
of an annual period, or in a subsequent
period, the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XEGHBEHME(H)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 Foreign currency translation 3.11 HERZ

In the individual financial statements of
the consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined and
are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
at historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into
HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
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Income and expenses have been converted mHRZERFETRE -
into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure
have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the

translation reserve in equity.

BEHEBIERBE ZEEAEZRENERE
HOBRBERALERSEHER M -

When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on sale.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHBERME(HA)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Leases 3.12 HE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets leased out under operating leases as
the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the
nature of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental
income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on straight-line
method over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the year in which
they are earned.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes

76 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited ZYIRIFHERER AT

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims
from, tax authorities relating to the current or
prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according
to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on
the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised
as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHBERME(HA)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.13 FiIBHEFTEE ()

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period the liability is settled or the asset
realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand demand, deposits with banks
and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

3.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue
of shares are deducted from share premium to
the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

3.16 Share-based payment transactions

78 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited ZYIRIFHERER AT

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation
are measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the share
options awarded. Their value is appraised at
the grant date and excludes the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHBERME(HA)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.16 Share-based payment transactions 3.16 UK X 2R3 ()
(Continued)

All share-based compensation is ultimately WERE 2 BERERNSSES - N E B8
recognised as an expense in full at the grant RO RM L %%ﬁ(ﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬂi ITE-*fT:E
date when the share options granted vest BRERBUAEAR NEBHAEMS
immediately, with a corresponding increase BHER - BlRE RS 3%2%1&%%@23&
in share option reserve. If vesting periods or ERAREEHRERAMAL (EHBEBEHERK
other vesting conditions apply, the expense is ATEERECHE RS @8EMES
recognised over the vesting period, based on BHRUEMAZE -NERRBETEREB 2B
the best available estimate of the number of MRS B BIRMAET AR A - BIRERIEET A5 -
share options expected to vest. Non-market MERTEZERESE PRRERMEET - T
vesting conditions are included in assumptions ERTHRR A EL AR -

about the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication
that the number of share options expected
to vest differs from previous estimates. No
adjustment to expense recognised in prior
periods is made if fewer share options
ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are BREETER TR ERERETER
exercised, the amount previously recognised in FIBRBEARGRE - & ERERZKEKRE
share option reserve will be transferred to share MBMRTE  EAREREREPERZKX
premium. When the share options are forfeited B A RE &R o

after or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.17 Retirement benefit costs and short term
employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans. The Group
operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”),
for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries or the maximum
mandatory contribution as required by the MPF
Scheme and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The
employer’s contributions of the Group vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded
to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary
in other jurisdictions are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the respective
jurisdiction. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a specific percentage of their payroll
costs to the retirement benefit to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the benefit schemes is to make the
specified contributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.17 Retirement benefit costs and short term
employee benefits (Continued)

Short term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

3.18 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include other
payables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest related
charges are recognised as an expense in
finance costs in profit or loss.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as
a de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amount is recognised
in profit or loss.

Other payables
These are recognised initially at their fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

319 BEFRBEE

3.19 Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of
assets to be disposed of together as a group
in a single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be
transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of non-current assets
(and all individual assets and liabilities in
a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, non-current
assets, or the disposal group, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. The principal
exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the accounts of the Group are concerned are
deferred tax assets, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates) and
investment properties. These assets, even if
held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies governed with.

As long as a non-current asset is classified
as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R B ot

for the year ended 31st December 2011
BE—F——fFf - H=+—HIFEF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHBERME(HA)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.20 Segment reporting 3.20 7 EHE

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors
are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following
reportable segments:

= Property investment

= Property development and trading

- Securities investment and securities
trading

- Provision of financial services

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service
lines requires difference resources as well
as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers, if any, are carried out at arms’ length
prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses
for reporting segment results under HKFRS
8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs, except
that gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain
on disposal of subsidiaries, bank interest
income, other loan interest income, corporate
income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment, are not included in arriving
at the operating results of the operating
segment.
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.20 Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of investment
properties, property, plant and equipment,
loans and receivables and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, and mainly
exclude certain property, plant and equipment,
available-for-sale financial assets, operating
cash and corporate assets, which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment and primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities
and exclude tax payables, deferred tax liabilities
and corporate liabilities which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and primarily applies to the
Group’s headquarter.

3.21 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i

(it

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHBERME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.21 Related parties (Continued) 3.21 BEEEAL ()
Close family members of a person are those E-ATWEBERBXKERBHITZEZATLT
family members who may be expected to HERBAETEEINEERYZATEZENE
influence, or be influenced by, that person in AXRBREL BTG :

their dealings with the entity and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or () ZBATHFZREBIREBZH
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or (i) ZBATHEBIREBRHENTZ : &
domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that (i) ZBALTHZEBEATHEBRREZHFD
person’s spouse or domestic partner. REA-

3.22 Provisions and contingent liabilities 3.22 BENAREE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has MRAEEAREFENSHRBEEZELETE

a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a EF EAmMEMBAZEASERSELEN

result of a past event, and it is probable that an R ERINE - A AEDL A SR RT - B

outflow of economic benefits will be required HEWER MREKRBEEA  BIEERF

to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate T X HARRZE AR A REE -

can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting FTERER S RE BED R R AZERMIE
date and adjusted to reflect the current best B AT o

estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of MREELEIENERINEE AT AL ERE
economic benefits will be required, or the SEELAHABYEBELAIENGE  Beg
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the ZEABRBEAUAEGE BERINEH TN
obligation is disclosed as contingent liability, BARBIBR SN - MR AKENEEARFERK
unless the probability of outflow of economic SRAREUREEETREEERETE
benefit is remote. Possible obligations, whose ERERAXABE  BERINTO T EEMRE
existence will only be confirmed by the AR AN o

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

Estimated fair value of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are stated at
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in 3.6. Their fair values, set out in note 15
to the financial statements, are determined by an
independent professional valuer, LCH (Asia-Pacific)
Surveyors Limited (“LCH”). Such valuations are made
based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainties and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market
data and actual transactions in the market.

Provision for impairment of loans and
receivables

The Group’s policy for the provision for impairment
of receivables is based on the evaluation of
collectability and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness,
collateral security and past collection history of
each borrower. If the financial conditions of the
borrowers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in impairment of their ability to make repayments,
additional allowance may be required. If the financial
conditions of the borrowers of the Group, on whose
account provision for impairment has been made,
were improved and no impairment of their ability to
make payments were noted, reversal of provision for
impairment may be required.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting
date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group
that may lead to impairment of assets. Where
an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use
calculations performed in assessing recoverable
amounts incorporate a number of key estimates
and assumptions about future events, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making these key
estimates and judgements, the directors take into
consideration assumptions that are mainly based
on market condition existing at the reporting date
and appropriate market and discount rates. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market
data and actual transactions entered into by the
Group.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain in the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in
which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BAREEHETREE (FE)
JUDGEMENT (Continued)
Net realisable value of properties held for sale BEMETEEFEE
Management determines the net realisable value of ERBRARTHSEE (PRI HERS KA
properties held for sale by using prevailing market BUAGEREXEANEMES  MBHERS) BERF
data such as most recent sale transactions and EMELAERFE FRAGENRESE TRKZE
market valuation reports available from independent o MZSEBREZBRTHEBEZRTERERER
qualified professional surveyors. Such valuations BERZE -WELHER EEABEZREXZENRK
are made based on certain assumptions, which are EAGEZMRAZBERR - ZE Gt T HEERM
subject to uncertainties and might materially differ GHEBERTSE L2EBRRZELR -
from the actual result. In making the judgement,
reasonable consideration has been given to the
underlying assumptions that are mainly based on
market condition existing at the reporting date.
These estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and actual transactions in the market.
Estimation of impairment losses of available- HAMHEESREEZREBE A5
for-sale financial assets
For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant RAHELEERMEEMNS  ATEBRELFEBENK
or prolonged decline in fair value below cost is FERRHELEBERE REEATETREEHE
considered to be objective evidence of impairment. ER/SHERBR AL - NMEL LRI > TIER
Judgement is required when determining whether PEACBAHBREEREZBRABEZEE 2T -
a decline in fair value has been significant and/or AEBBERAMEAER  fITERIBFIRRREH
prolonged. In making this judgement, historical data BTN/ WREARZHBER -
on market volatility as well as price of the specific
investment are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry
and sector performance and financial information
regarding the issuer/investee.
REVENUE 5. WA
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, WA(ETAAEE &8 EHeBA MEER
represented rental income, property management B MEHERARBERFERA - FRERZ
fee income, sales of properties and loan interest WATT :
income. Revenue recognised during the year is as
follows:
2011 2010
—E-—-fF —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FER FET
Sales of properties MEHEERA - 654,163
Rental income e WA 36,133 44,506
Property management fee income L ESSEE-N PN 13,662 12,082
Loan interest income XA S BA 16,705 1,653
66,500 712,404
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEE

The executive directors have identified the Group’s BITESERAEECHARBKERNEAEED I
four services lines as operating segments.

pull)

These operating segments are monitored and hELENPRIRLEABRSHLELEER MR
strategic decisions are made on the basis of RTE N R A —ELEED o

adjusted segment operating results.

For the year ended 31st December 2011 BE-_E——S+-H=+—-HLEE
Securities
Property  investment
development and Provision
Property and securities  of financial
investment trading trading services Total
NE  BERER Rt
NERE HEREE R5EE SREH ag

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
Thx Thxn ThEx ThEx TR

Revenue KA

From external customers HoMEE 49,795 - - 16,705 66,500
Inter-segment revenue (Note) BEPIEE (Fa) - - - 26,851 26,851
Reportable segment revenue 2RI BERA 49,795 - - 43,556 93,351
Reportable segment profit/(loss) & 2 # 2 #&F / (&8) 55,623 (10,086) (8,764) 14,757 51,530

Depreciation of property, plant N BERZXELNE

and equipment (910) - - - (910)
Fair value loss on financial assets ~ HATENABREZ

at fair value through profit or loss £ REEZ A FEFE - - (10,266) - (10,266)
Interest income on financial assets ~ RAFEJIABEE 2

at fair value through profit or loss £ EEEZFIEMA - - 26 - 26
Gain in fair value of investment RENEATEKRS

properties 21,970 - - - 21,970
Provision for properties held for sale  SEM% 2 &

(included in cost of sales) (BREHENERN) - (12,550) - - (12,550)
Reportable segment assets T2HEIHEE 667,829 299,702 62,839 152,639 1,183,009
Additions to non-current ERERYITEE

segment assets 1,635 - - - 1,635
Reportable segment liabilities AERIHEE 13,319 3,275 - 1,860 18,454
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 2WBELE (&)
For the year ended 31st December 2010 HE-T—TF+-_A=1+—HLEE
Securities
Property investment
development and Provision
Property and securities of financial
investment trading trading services Total
nE  EFRER Rt
NERE  BRREE EHER LRR% g

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TARL

Revenue KA

From external customers HMNEE 56,588 654,163 = 1,653 712,404
Inter-segment revenue (Note) BHMEE () - - - 50,942 50,042
Reportable segment revenue TEHFIBRA 56,588 654,163 - 52,595 763,346
Reportable segment profit 2R HEF 129,185 173,751 13,986 1,570 318,492

Depreciation of property, plant nE BERZXELNE

and equipment (957) - - - (957)
Fair value gain on financial assets AT EJIABREEZ
at fair value through profit or loss £ BEEz A FERE - - 13,573 = 13,573
Gain in fair value of investment RENELTERS
properties 90,003 - - = 90,003
Write back of provision for properties &% 7 EfE#&E
held for sale (included in cost (BEEHEERAR)
of sales) = 428 = = 428
Reportable segment assets TE2HIREE 630,455 132,810 57,124 11,556 831,045
Additions to non-current ERERBADEE
segment assets 457 - - - 457
Reportable segment liabilites ~ T2HABEE 12,953 2,426 - 803 16,182
Note: Inter-segment revenue are charged at prevailing Mz : EBERAHARANTBREESRBESTHHBARET
market interest rates for the advance from the REMEREULMEXRERLRESHNEB A G HE
subsidiary in provision of financial services segment RHEMNEHEFRE o

to the subsidiaries engaged in property investment
as well as property development and trading.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZPEEE(E)
The totals presented for the Group’s operating RAEBEENPBAEIN S HEBHEAT HREFE
segments reconcile to the Group’s key financial TIMAEB BB EEENYENAT :
figures as presented in the financial statements as
follows:
2011 2010
—2——-fF —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FER FAET
Reportable segment revenue A2Hy WA 93,351 763,346
Elimination of inter-segment revenue HH B EB P URA (26,851) (50,942)
Group revenue SB WA 66,500 712,404
Reportable segment profit 2% H A 51,530 318,492
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 1Ol NET & 5,241 =
Bank interest income RITFIBUA 31,738 13,380
Other loan interest income H A ERFEWA 366 358
Unallocated corporate income RAOBRZERA 756 375
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AfEHEeRMEE ZRERE
financial assets (331) (525)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEERE (8,382) (9,790)
Profit before income tax B P15 B AT & A 80,918 322,290
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 2WBELE (&)

2011 2010
—2——-fF —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
(restated)
(E23)
Reportable segment assets AEHHAEE 1,183,009 831,945
Other financial assets HhomEE 2,298 1,856
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKRZE 1,904 16,272
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEE 719,031 980,984
Other corporate assets HthEEE 462 601
Group assets SEEE 1,906,704 1,831,658
Reportable segment liabilities AEHRSHAaE 18,454 16,182
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 22,158 18,677
Other corporate liabilities Ht¥aRE 1,430 1,942
Tax payables JRE A~ 75 38 9,561 8,848
Group liabilities SEAME 51,603 45,649
The Group’s revenue from external customers and AEBRBEHINEPZWANREIEREEERIZNA

its non-current assets are divided into the following T @SS :

geographical areas:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REHIIEFHBA FRBEE

2011 2010 2011 2010

—B-—-% ZFT-TF Z=B-—-F _—T-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FTET FET TERT FHET
Hong Kong (domicile) &8 (EBE) 35,124 298,043 409,172 393,521
Mainland China PR R 31,376 414,361 258,042 251,086
Total @ 66,500 712,404 667,214 644,607
The revenue information above is based on the BRAREHEYMERAERDEME SEEN - il A
location of the customers except for the revenue BERUARPbEBEE -
derived from sale of properties which are based on
the location of properties.
Non-current assets information above is based on LIRS EENEEMR (RTREERTA) A
the location of the assets and excludes financial HXE o

instruments.
ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4§ S)CB



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e
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7. OTHER FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest income on financial assets
at amortised cost:
- bank interest income
— other loan interest income

8. OTHER INCOME

Hiv & @K

NEHRAARZEREE

ZHMBWA

—RITHBEHA
—H A B RS KA

Other income recognised during the year is as

follows:

Compensation income

Dividend income

Written-off of other payables
and accruals

Exchange gain

Sundry income

BB
LISEON

3 H A JE A ROR
KT E M

B 34 U 5
FEEHA
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Hfth Yy &5

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-TF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FTERT FTET

31,738 13,380

366 358

32,104 13,738
RAFEER 2 EMER2HNMT

2011 2010

—B-—-F —T%F

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FTERT FTET

3,007 1,394

1,477 413

- 5

839 60

1,500 390

6,823 2,262
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax has been arrived
at after charging/(crediting):

Employee benefit expense:
Directors' remuneration (note 14)
- fees
— salaries and allowances
— retirement benefit scheme
contributions

Other staff
— wages and salaries
— retirement benefit scheme
contributions

Auditor’ s remuneration

Cost of properties held for sale
recognised as expense

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets

Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Provision/(Write back of provision) for
properties held for sale

Impairment loss on loans and receivables

Written-off of other payables and accruals

Rental income under operating leases,
less outgoings of HK$12,638,000
(2010: HK$11,498,000)

9. KRATEBADEF

BTG E MR,
GIA)ATRE:

EERANFEX :
E=Me (HE14)
-
—FE KRR
—IRRTEMET &I 5K

HEMET
—-TERE®
—RIREFIFT B3R

2 206 B 2
ERRAARAXZ
FEVERAA

ME - BERRBZTE

AREESREECRERE
HENE BERZBZER
HEMEZBRE/ (BERE)

B KWK R ERE
WA A B R R B AT B A

BELEENZHSWA -
AL 3% §H12,638,00078 7T
(ZZ—Z4F : 11,498,000/ 7T)

2011 2010
—B2-—-F —TFF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
F#T THT
1,000 1,000
2,407 2,407
24 24
3,431 3,431
3,807 5,963
238 239
7,476 9,633
500 500

- 481,909

1,041 1,106
331 525

16 66
12,550 (428)
2,469 -
- ()
(23,495) (33,008)
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FAIEHBEX
2011 2010
= —T-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FHET
(restated)
(E7%))
Current tax KEBLE
- Hong Kong profits tax —BEMNEH
Tax for the year REEFIEA - 152
Over provision in prior year BREFEZR (45) -
(45) 152
- PRC enterprise income tax —FREREMEH
Tax for the year REFHIE 9,244 4,306
Under/(Over) provision in prior year BAFELR(28) 34 (1,527)
9,278 2,779
Deferred tax EEHIE
Current year (note 26) NEE (FF5E26) 863 2,200
Total income tax expense s > 2% 10,096 5,131

During the year ended 31st December 2011, Hong
Kong profits tax has not been provided as the
Group had available tax losses brought forward from
previous years to offset the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31st December 2010, Hong
Kong profits tax had been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong in that year.

Taxes on the profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof.

96 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited SREIIRIIZERERA T

BE-_Z——F+A=1+—"RIFEANLLETR
BRNGH - NREBUEAEFEAAR B IR BB 4t
BHEERBEENMGERTOEAM

BE_Z-ZF+_A=t-BLFERNEAFIRE
ABNEH  BENERDAZFEERET BRI &
HREER B F)1216.5%5t & ©

24 45 L7 L 30 0% 4 8 44 2 A B SR B U 2 B
- DEEEHRTZER  RERERRTER
SEEST
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
BE—F——fFf - H=+—HIFEF

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. Fr8%iM X (&)

FrIEBA BAEE R R B 2 RN 2 8 K10

Reconciliation between income tax expense and

11.

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: T
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT FET
(restated)
(E27%))
Profit before income tax B P 15155 Al i ) 80,918 322,290
Tax on profit before income tax, REEME16.5%
calculated at the statutory rate (ZZ2—ZF :16.5%)
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) STEZBRATTE %RHIJM‘IJZ%RIE 13,351 53,178
Effect of different tax rates of group FHEMAZERREE & E
companies operating in other BATABRRzZE
jurisdictions 2,867 1,509
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T\—HD m%ﬁzﬁ%%; 2,875 1,291
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEAZRHRWAZHREZE (5,510) (28,709)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RBABEBB 2 HBETE 2,846 3,047
Utilisation of tax losses previously HRABTARERNIBES
not recognised (5,390) (22,886)
Tax effect of temporary difference AEREHEERIBBETE
not recognised (198) (772)
Tax effect of temporary difference BRERMEZBEIRETE
recognised (734) -
Overprovision in prior years BEFEZR (11) (1,527)
Income tax expense FECY 5 10,096 5,131

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF 11.

THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the

ERRAER ARG R

AR AEEA ANEGER S EF70,822,0008 7T (=

owners of the Company of HK$70,822,000
(2010: HK$317,159,000 (restated)), a loss of
HK$19,959,000 (2010: a profit of HK$191,782,000)

— T F :317,159,0008 7t (%)) - Hdh I8
19,959,000/ Jt (= F — T 4 : % F/191,782,000/8
TL) BEARE Z B B3R 5 BR

has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE

BN TARRFEREAZFERS

(@) Dividends payable to the owners of the (a)
Company attributable to the year:

2011 2010
—2——-fF —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FER FHET
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.016 %K Hi Ik B & % I @ A%0.016/8 T
(2010: HK$0.015) and special ZE—ZF:0.015% 1)
dividend of HK$0.08 (2010: Nil) KRR B &R T @ AR0.08% T
per ordinary share (ZZE—ZF : §|) 190,714 29,799

The final dividend and special dividend
proposed after the reporting date has not been
recognised as a liability at the reporting date,
but reflected as an appropriation of retained

WERREEZRPRE IR B ERR K
SHBR/EE  ERMARBE-Z——F+=
A=+ —BLEFEZRBEN RSN R —
RBGR

earnings and contributed surplus for the year
ended 31st December 2011.

(b) Dividends payable to the owners of the b)) L—HBFEFEERNTARABDNBAEAZEERE
Company attributable to the previous financial ERAREERNHERS A
year, approved and paid during the year:
2011 2010
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT FAET
Final dividend in respect of the F—MHREFERBRE
previous financial year, approved B E @mAR0.0158 7T
and paid during the year, of (ZZ2—ZF : 8])
HK$0.015 (2010: Nil) per ERAFEE AN RZ T
ordinary share 29,799 -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREF

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per RARIHER ANELSRERRETRF TR TEE
share attributable to the owners of the Company are FTE
based on the following data:

2011 2010
—2——-fF —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx FET
(restated)
(&E5)
Profit attributable to the owners RNAREEANENLZEF
of the Company 70,822 317,159
Number of shares BHEE 000 000
F F
Weighted average number of ordinary RERERNZFmS 2
shares for the purpose of basic T3 AR A4 S B (FE(a))
earnings per share (Note(a)) 1,986,606 1,897,757
Weighted average number of ordinary BRETERREZREER
shares deemed to be issued at nil INEREBTFEITZ
consideration on the assumed TR mEFEHE (@)
exercise of the warrants (Note(a)) - 92,683
Weighted average number of ordinary RERBFRFmE 2
shares for the purposes of diluted TR N &
earnings per share 1,986,606 1,990,440
Notes: G

(@)

For the year ended 31st December 2010, the above
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
calculation of basic earnings per share had taken into
account of the number of shares issued upon the
exercise of all the unlisted warrants as detailed in note
27(b).

For the year ended 31st December 2010, the above
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
calculation of basic earnings per share had taken
into account of the issue and cancellation of ordinary
shares as detailed in note 27(a).

For the years ended 31st December 2011 and 2010,
the computation of diluted earnings per share did not
assume the exercise of the outstanding share options
as the exercise of the share options was anti-dilutive.

HEBE—Z-ZFT_A=+-HUEFEZERE
ABMAERAZ B ERBMETFHE - Dt RME
27D ARTTEPT A I E MR REEMEITROEE -

HEBE-Z-ZFT A=+ -HUEFEZERE
ABAARAz Ll EBnEFee - St kM
27(a)FT L 1T AR A BB -

R VB AREE B ERE =T
FR-F-TET-ASt-ALTEZSRENA
ABREEBREARE (L -
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14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 14. EEMERSREEEH M
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments EEHS
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven BENRENENEE(ZE—FF: L) ZFAZ2HE
(2010: seven) directors were as follows: N

Salaries,  Contribution
allowances to retirement

and benefits benefits
in kind scheme
Fees 210 = 4:1 BIKER Total
e RENER SRR Fob
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TER TER TER
2011 —F-—-F
Executive directors BITEE
Wong Chung Tak THE 100 1,807 12 1,919
Tse Kam Fai i8R 18 100 600 12 712
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart FHEfE 200 - - 200
Chung Koon Yan EER 200 - - 200
Chong Kally HEM 200 - - 200
Non-executive directors FHITES
Liu Sing Piu, Chris BEZ 100 - - 100
Wong Ngo, Derick B 100 - - 100
1,000 2,407 24 3,431
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14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 14. EEMERESREREEHM (8

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) EEMS (#)
Contribution
Salaries, to retirement
allowances and benefits
benefits in kind scheme
Fees 2R RIKEF Total
e REMREH SRR Fok
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TET TR THT T
2010 —2-%2F%
Executive directors BITEE
Wong Chung Tak TRE 100 1,807 12 1,919
Tse Kam Fai Bk 100 600 12 712
Independent BUFBTES
non-executive directors
Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart FEfE 200 - - 200
Chung Koon Yan EER 200 - - 200
Chong Kally HEM 200 - - 200
Non-executive directors FHITES
Liu Sing Piu, Chris BEZ 100 - - 100
Wong Ngo, Derick D 100 - - 100
1,000 2,407 24 3,431

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

RAFER  TEIMNZHBEETNEETHEXAE
BEEMME -

RAFER  ARBEYBAEEINERAME - EH
MAREE 2 RE)REBAE -
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14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included two (2010:
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. Emoluments payable to
the remaining three (2010: three) individuals during
the year are as follows:

Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowance and benefits in kind

Contribution to retirement benefits
schemes

REYEF

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

1 02 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited ZYIRIFHERER AT

EXREHH - FERE -

#% 21,000,000/ 7T
1,000,001/ 7T £1,500,0007%5 7T

14. ESHERSREERBHH (H)

TERRTFMAL

AEERRFHcABALTET  ME(ZF—FF:
MA) BRARBZES  HFMFRERRR Lo
M- EB=%(ZF—FTF ZR) ATRNAFEZ
BT

R E ISR

2011 2010

—E2-—-F —TFF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FiT THT

H fth 2 B

1,727 2,564

33 59

1,760 2,623

WEZMENF AR

Number of individuals

ABH®A
2011 2010
—B2-—-F —TFF
3 2
- 1
3 g




15.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation purpose are measured using the fair

15.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

RENE-FKE

D EEEHEURRES R/ AEREREENHK
SEMENERRORBAFEEAGFE  LIAR
REME -

value model and are accounted for as investment

properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts in the consolidated BAMBRARTEROEZCZHHENT ¢
statement of financial position are summarised as

follows:

2011 2010

—E——F —ZT-ZF

Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

Bt 3 TER FHET

Carrying amounts at 1st January R—A—BE@AE 623,480 533,477
Transfer of leasehold land and buildings ~ EEHEE L REF

to investment properties EREME (@) 18,600 =

Disposal of investment property HEREME (b) (4,350) =

Net gain on fair value adjustments RNEFEFHE 2 F W= 21,970 90,003

Carrying amounts at 31st December R+ZA=+—HEEE 659,700 623,480

Notes:

(@ There was a fair value gain of approximately
HK$4,674,000 upon the transfer of leasehold land
and buildings to investment properties. This amount
has been recognised in other comprehensive income
during the year.

(b)  During the year, an investment property was disposed
of at a net consideration of RMB3,850,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,753,000). Accordingly,
a net gain on disposal of investment property of
approximately HK$403,000 has been recognised in
profit or loss during the year.

Investment properties were valued at open
market value by reference to market prices for
similar properties as at 31st December 2011 by
independent and professional qualified valuers, LCH
(2010: Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited), who is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties.

(a) BEREELHREFERENERELRATFTARED
4,674,0008 T - EARBERFREEMEZEKER

() FABHE-EERAEWE FREAARES,850,000
7T (FB5 M 494,753,000/ 7T) ° Bt - RERDERR
AR AERR I S IR E W1 5 2 7F I £7408,0005 7T

BREYENR_Z——F+_A=+—HABIUKAEA
REXGEMMET(CF-FF F-KFEAEH
REREXERARAR) RAETESREUNE
ZHEETHE METABTEAEMBEZEER
YHAEEERERVOIHFERUNE LR -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP 15. REYE—FR&E (F)
(Continued)

The Group’s interests in investment properties at AEERERAESI CREMEEZDTOT ¢
their carrying amount are analysed as follows:

2011 2010
—2——-fF —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx FRET
In Hong Kong held on: REBRFE :
Medium-term lease of between BN T10F 250 2 A HAF 4
10 to 50 years 39,100 34,500
Long-term lease of more than 50 years HE0F LA E 2 REAAR Y 364,400 338,800
403,500 373,300
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBAIMNLERFE :
Medium-term lease of between BN T10FEB50F 2 F HIF 4
10 to 50 years 256,200 245,830
Long-term lease of more than 50 years 50 F LA E 2 REAFRA - 4,350
659,700 623,480
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 16. M¥ -BERRBE-FEEREQH
GROUP AND COMPANY

Group rE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
land and office
buildings ~ Leasehold  equipment Motor
HELHEK improvements Hffl - £ER vehicles Total
BT HENEEE BAZRE RE 3

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TR

At 1st January 2010 R-E-%%-F-H

Cost KA 20,563 3,511 1,766 3,049 28,889
Accumulated depreciation ZHHE (559) (3,336) (1,347) (1,750) (6,992)
Net carrying amount REOFE 20,004 175 419 1,299 21,897
Year ended 31st December 2010 HZ-F-F5+_A=1-HRILEE

Opening net carrying amount ENREE 20,004 175 419 1,299 21,897
Additions RE - - 103 365 468
Disposals & - - (1) (132) (139)
Exchange realignment ERES - - 1 - 1
Depreciation ik (296) (60) (294) (456) (1,106)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 19,708 115 228 1,076 21,127
At 31st December 2010 R-E-E5+-A=1+-AH

Cost KA 20,563 3,511 1,868 2,978 28,920
Accumulated depreciation RiHNE (855) (3,396) (1,640) (1,902) (7,793)
Net carrying amount REFE 19,708 115 228 1,076 21,127

Year ended 31st December 2011 HZ-F——-%+-A=+-RALEE

Opening net carrying amount ENERFE 19,708 115 228 1,076 21,127
Transfer to investment properties  EEZHEME (HE15)

(note 15) (13,926) - - - (13,926)
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 32) &M B2 (Fi5#32) - - 8 (592) (600)
Additions NE - - 65 2,195 2,260
Disposals HE - - (2) (320) (322)
Exchange realignment ERER - - 1 15 16
Depreciation il (296) (60) (130) (555) (1,041)
Closing net carrying amount FRREFE 5,486 55 154 1,819 7,514
At 31st December 2011 R-B--%+-A=1+-H
Cost KA 6,263 3,511 1,556 3,338 14,668
Accumulated depreciation RHfTE (777) (3,456) (1,402) (1,519) (7,154)
Net carrying amount EERE 5,486 55 154 1,819 7,514
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 16. ¥ BERRE-EAEERAXLQF (F)
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

Group (Continued) AEE (E)
The Group’s leasehold land included in property, ANEBRMmFEL106,0008 L (ZE—TF:
plant and equipment with a net carrying amount of 18,263,000 L) 2 A E L1t (GTAME » BEKRK
HK$4,106,000 (2010: HK$18,263,000) are situated M) IR EE - WIRFHBLRFE -
in Hong Kong and are held under a medium-term
lease.
Company ¥
Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment Motor
B KB R vehicles Total
/N E B
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FAT FHET FHET
At 1st January 2010 R-—Z—ZF—-HA—8
Cost B 212 459 671
Accumulated depreciation RitiTE (193) (320) (513)
Net carrying amount REFEE 19 139 158

Year ended 31st December 2010 HEEZE_-_E—ZF
+ZHB=+—HLEE

Opening net carrying amount FOREFE 19 139 158
Additions A= 8 - 8
Depreciation e (13) @) (20)
Disposals HE = (132) (132)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 14 = 14
At 31st December 2010 R=Z—ZF
+=ZBA=+—H

Cost (DN 220 - 220
Accumulated depreciation Bitine (206) - (206)
Net carrying amount BREFE 14 - 14
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 16. W% -BERRB-FEEREAQH (M)
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

Company (Continued) RATF ()
Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment Motor
B £ER vehicles Total
WAERE AE Fok o
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THER THER THER

Year ended 31st December 2011 HEZE=-ZT——&
TZA=+—BLEE

Opening net carrying amount FOREEE 14 - 14
Additions NE 1 - 1

Depreciation e (7) - (7
Disposals & - - -
Closing net carrying amount EREREFE 8 - 8
At 31st December 2011 R=Z——-F

+t=A=+—~8”

Cost DN 123 - 123
Accumulated depreciation Ritie (115) - (115)
Net carrying amount REFEE 8 - 8
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS
DUE FROM AND/OR TO SUBSIDIARIES -

NG PP Y4 1] 1T P F
$OE-AAT

COMPANY
2011 2010
—F—-% —T-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx FRET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - AR 4 4
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUR BT B A B) 2 FRIA 1,997,156 1,941,941
Less: Impairment losses recognised* B BRERREEE (634,072) (652,753)
1,363,084 1,289,188
Amount due to a subsidiary FET — M B A B 2 SRIE 152,470 -

* Impairment loss was recognised for amounts due
from certain subsidiaries because these subsidiaries
were in a deficit position.

Movement for impairment provision of amounts due
from subsidiaries:

o OBRRET MT% RN AR - E L 5 E K
ZEMWBARZ KRR RERE

KB RARRBZHERBZED

2011 2010

—E-——F —E-TF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FHET FAT

Balance as at 1st January R—B—Bz#&s#% 652,753 694,610
Impairment loss written back BEEERD - (17,180)
Write-off on disposals of subsidiaries L E M B AR 2 M (18,681) (24,677)
Balance as at 31st December RT+-—A=+—HZz&% 634,072 652,753

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31st
December 2011 are detailed in note 35.
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
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18. GOODWILL - GROUP 18. BWE-FXKEH
2011 2010
—B2-—-F —TFF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHER FAT
At 1st January R—HA—H
Gross carrying amount BREAEH 11,297 11,297
Accumulated impairment R2ETRE (11,297) (11,297
Net carrying amount 1st January R—R—BZEEFHE - =
Net carrying amount at 1st January W—HA—BZREF# - =
Impairment losses REEE - =
Net carrying amount at 31st December R+ =-A=+—HZEREFHE - =
At 31st December R+=ZA=+—H
Gross carrying amount IREARE 11,297 11,297
Accumulated impairment ZRE (11,297) (11,297)
Net carrying amount BRI F 58 - =
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - 19. AHHESREE-FK
GROUP
2011 2010
= —TFF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FET
Available-for-sale financial assets, at cost ] HE SR EE KK 1,239 2,381
Less: Impairment losses B REEE (856) (525)
383 1,856
Transfer to assets classified as held BYEEHNEAREEE
for sale (note 25) (Pt 5E25) - (1,176)
383 680
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e

for the year ended 31st December 2011
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - 19.
GROUP (Continued)

Movement of impairment provision of available-for-
sale financial assets:

AHLEEREE-ZFKE (H)

AHLESREEZREREEZD

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-TF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FER FAT

Balance as at 1st January R—B—Bz#&# 525 =
Impairment loss DR SR 331 525
Balance as at 31st December Rt+-—A=+—Hz#&% 856 525

Available-for-sale financial assets are all unlisted
equity investments and are stated at cost less any
impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors
are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be
measured reliably.

AHEESREEDBR/FLTRARE - ARTA
BEFRAFEZEEFFRN MEERRBREZLF
EARRET] et 8 » HURRAMER = E IR ESIR -

20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE - GROUP 20. HEYE-TEH
2011 2010
—B-—-F —TFF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt 3 TR FAT
Cost PR 311,952 132,702
Less: Provision for properties held for sale i : & ¥R E (@) (12,550) =
299,402 132,702
In Hong Kong, held on long-term lease TIREE BREBABEOFEE (b 299,402 132,702

Notes:

(@@ As at 31st December 2011, provision of
HK$12,550,000 was made against the cost of
properties held for sale to net realisable value with
reference to the open market value.

As at 31st December 2010, provision of HK$428,000
was reversed as the directors considered that this
was not required as the market value in 2010 was
higher than the original cost.

1 1 O Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited ZYIRIFHERER AT

(@ R-ZE——F+-A=+—8 2 ARMEYHEE
W) 5 2 B 7N B ] B3R FE 2 = BB 1E E12,550,00045 7T
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
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20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE - GROUP

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  During the year ended 31st December 2011, sale
and purchase agreements were entered into between
the Group and independent third parties to purchase
properties located at Bank of East Asia Harbour View
Centre and World-Wide House at considerations of
HK$104,000,000 and HK$63,669,000 respectively.
These acquisitions were completed during the year.

During the year ended 31st December 2010, sale
and purchase agreements were entered into between
the Group and independent third parties to dispose
of certain properties located at On Fung Building
and at World-Wide House at considerations of
HK$210,000,000 and HK$57,800,000 respectively.
These transactions were completed in year 2010.

The properties held for sale are expected to be
recovered within one year.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS - GROUP
AND COMPANY

A defined credit policy is maintained within the
Group. The general credit terms range from one to
three months. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables to minimise its credit risk.
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management.

20.

HENE-FKE(H)

BieE : ()

) BE-T——F+-_A=+—BLEER A£HEA
BUYF=FFIVEE RS UABELNERRTEE
FLRIRBRAE 2% - R{EH 5IA104,000,0007 7T
163,669,000/ 7T ° 2 EWHERFATK °

HE-_T-ZTF+-_A=+-BLFER A£EEHE
BYE=FFINEERH  NHEURRZEXERIER
KREZETWE  KES FA210,000,0007% 7T &
57,800,000 7T - ZEXHER_ZE—TF T °

BFRFEDEERN —FRKE -

UMK EERFR BAREREE-FK
RARDF

ARENFREBEZEERR - —REEH/—=
=R - BuUBEFHARSEERE - ARELTER
RIEHRBEZEBWTIE  UEEREEERR -5
RERBENEMBRERE -

Group Company
rEE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F CZE-ET§F =Z—ZE-—-§ ZT-ITF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET TR FET
Trade receivables JE I BR 3R 2,220 1,890 - =
Other receivables, prepayments Hfh U FRIE
and deposits B RIERIES 8,839 1,142 443 376
11,059 3,032 443 376
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21.

1 1 2 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited ZYIRIFHERER AT

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS - GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the
fair values of trade and other receivables are not
materially different from their carrying amount
because these amounts have short maturity periods
on their inception.

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade and other
receivables as at the reporting date, based on due
date is as follows:

Trade receivables: FEURBR 3K ¢
Neither past due nor impaired K ER IR AR E

Other receivables: e W sk IE
Neither past due nor impaired R ER TR B

Trade receivables and other receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to debtors for
whom there was no recent history of default. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold
any collateral in respect of trade receivables that are
past due but not impaired.

21,

R K EMERFR BAREREE-FK
B KA AT (&)

ARREEFRR  BUCERRREMERRE L2 FE
REFASRYINFEEAZER  RAEZEFLEA
ErBERBEEI MR

Wik B - AR BRI R )
Bl BE AT -

Group Company
rEE YN

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E—-—-F —ZT-TF ZB-—H <—T-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET TET THERT THET
2,220 1,890 - -
8,257 680 73 7

AREHIARRAE 2 e YRR L b R IB 2 B A
REOWEENTE - REBELR  EEBRR

Wm - AR AR RREER - AEBLE
FZFEAHRERRE BEESTFE TAERm® -
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for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21. EWERAREMERRE  AARERKRE XK
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS - GROUP BRAAT (F)
AND COMPANY (Continued)
Ageing analysis of the trade receivables at the RiRE B - BUERRREBIREEABMIEZRRD
reporting date, based on invoice date, net of T
allowances, is as follows:
2011 2010
—2——-fF —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FER FAET
Within 30 days 30BA 749 573
31 to 90 days 31£290H 1,471 1,317
2,220 1,890
At each reporting date, all trade and other REERER - 1A BRI R E i UKD 1R
receivables have been reviewed for evidence of BRI R ERELERR  URRESARERE - RNE
impairment on both individual and collective basis. EE——FR-E-ZTF+-_A=+—HLEFE
There was no movement in impairment losses in A A5 I UK AR SR % L b R U R TR 2 U (S R T A
respect of trade and other receivables during the g o
years ended 31st December 2011 and 2010.
22. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES - GROUP 22, ERRERFE-FEH
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—TF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHERT FHET
— Current portion k%) 21,469 11,353
- Non-current portion — M 133,500 =
154,969 11,353
Provision for impairment loss NEEZREBEEE
during the year (2,469) -
Total of loans and receivables B kW GRIE A 152,500 11,353
- secured* — B A 142,469 2,353
- unsecured — 12,500 9,000
154,969 11,353
Provision for impairment loss NEEZRBEBEEE
during the year (2,469) -
Total of loans and receivables B WK A 152,500 11,353
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BE-F——F+-A=+—AULFE

22. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES - GROUP
(Continued)

*

As at 31st December 2011, this balance is secured
by the following:

(@)  Two properties located in Hong Kong;

(b)  Assignment of rental income from one of the
properties that secured;

(c) Personal guarantee executed by a sole
shareholder of a borrower; and

(d)  Allissued share capital of an unlisted borrower.

As at 31st December 2010, this balance was secured
by the following:

(@ 10% equity interest in a private company
incorporated in the PRC; and

(b)  Personal guarantee from an independent third
party.

Movement of impairment provision of loans and
receivables is as follows:

Balance as at 1st January

Balance as at 31st December

As at 31st December 2011, loans and receivables
of approximately HK$2,469,000 (2010: Nil) are
individually impaired since there is default in
repayment upon maturity. The remaining balance of
loans and receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a number of borrowers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Included in the balance as at 31st December 2011 is
an amount of HK$130,000,000 (2010: Nil) due from
a company, of which one of the Group’s subsidiaries
is also a director. Management is of the view that
this subsidiary does not have control and significant
influence over this debtor for the year.

R—A—B2z&#
Impairment loss RERE

R+t-A=t—Bz#&#%

EXRBERRE-FEE (8

Y RIE—FF+-A=+—H ZEBRERUATMERE
B
() MBEBENDE:

(b) REEBMEIHSERHE

© HERANE-REFZLZANOBEALER: K

(d —FFLETERANZHLEETRND -

R-ZB-—ZF+_A=+—0 ZEBRIUTREE

i i

(8 —FRPBERLIZILENRZ10%EsE &

(o) —BBUF=HZBEAER-

ERNEKRSFAZBREREESHHINMT

2011 2010
=F——-F —T-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET
2,469 -
2,469 -

RZZ——F+ZA=+—8 ARERRERZKE
#)2,469,0008 7L (ZE —FF : &) RE R 2 HIR &
B ANEEDERRE REBTRREZERK
RS E#HBEGIVERENCRISEERAE
e

R-E——F+-_A=+—HZ&#BEKR—FHAF
Z 3 78130,000,0008 L (ZE—ZF : &) - MEI
HP—MHBRABINAZARZES - EEERA
1L BT /B A RN A b (R 7 A I 4B A (] %Wé&ik
HEN -
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. EAFEIANEREZSREE—XAKH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, REB LT ZRAES
at market value (Note) EE (M) 57,115 57,124
Note: B sE -
These are investments in Hong Kong listed equity securities REBETRABSH 2IRE ZEFBFDEAEEERRE -
which are held for trading. Fair values for these investments ZEREBEZ AN TFEBRMFIFMM 2 FREE ©
have been measured as described in note 33.
Fair value loss of HK$10,240,000 (2010: gain of FARERR®ERZ QX TEEEA10,240,0008 T (ZZ2—

HK$13,573,000) has been recognised in profit or loss T4 513,573,000 T) °
during the year.

These financial assets are presented within the section on ZECMEENRBRARKE G 2 NHF RS ERFEESE
operating activities as a part of changes in working capital MERPELEZH s —HH -

in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP 24, BERBREEE-FEEREKDT
AND COMPANY

Group Company
%@ EING
2011 2010 2011 2010

2§ —T-TF "B _T-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FEx FHET FER FET

Cash at bank and in hand BITRFEES 6,286 14,503 289 1,178
Short-term bank deposits RERTER 124,646 966,481 74,487 45,000
Highly liquid funds aErnEtEe 588,099 - - -
719,031 980,984 74,776 46,178
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24,

25.

1 1 6 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited ZYIRIFHERER AT

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held
by the Group and the Company, short-term bank
deposits with originally maturity of three months or
less, and highly liquid financial assets with original
maturity of 32-49 days, and carry interests ranging
from 1.65% to 5.55% (2010: 0.81% to 1.5%) per
annum. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents approximate their fair values.

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group
is HK$592,922,000 (2010: HK$629,642,000) of
bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
placed with the banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. However, under
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through the banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE -
GROUP

In November 2010, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement to dispose of its
10% equity interest in an unlisted investment for
a consideration of RMB1,080,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,270,000). As the disposal had not yet
been completed as at 31st December 2010,
in accordance with HKFRS 5, the aforesaid
investment of HK$1,176,000 was classified as an
asset classified as held for sale. The disposal was
completed during the year and the sale proceeds
has been received in full. Accordingly, a gain of
HK$94,000 has been recognised in profit or loss
during the year.

24,

25.

RERRESE-FEEAREQTF (H)

Re kRS EEOEASERARARMFERS « RN
=AAREIE 2 G HRITIE S R RNS2-49R 2| 8 2
mnEtemEE - FHERT1.65FH5.55F (=
T—ZTF:081EF5E) - HEkREFAEZKER
EHEERAFEES -

AEERSEBASCSEEFRBEFRFREZHEIET
AR FE 2 R1T484592,922,0008 T (T —F
£ 1 629,642,000 7C) o ARBENT] B B IRAEM
B BREPENEEERTIRIEE  EER
NEEEREE]  AEERETBBIRENESEINE
EBCRITBAREBL G AEMER -

TRRFEERE-FKE

R-F—FE+—B  AEETT-HEEHE P
BRI E B LTRE 2 10%HES - REAA

R #1,080,0007t (8% 71,270,000 70) - A E
RZZ—ZTF+A=+—BHRZR  RESEY
BHREER LS - Ll RE1,176,0008 T 2R EE
BEAIDERFEZEAE] FHLEEERFAT
B WERBUWREBEE ZMERE - At - FRER
18 % BR M R Uk 594,000/ 7T °
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - GROUP AND

COMPANY
The major components of the deferred tax liabilities
recognised by subsidiaries and movements thereon

during the year are as follows:

Group

26.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
BE—F——fFf - H=+—HIFEF

BEHEAE-AREBRERR

B AR ER BB E2 T EEA RAEREY
EHHIIOT :

A%

Accelerated

tax Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
EBERE ERYE wE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT TR TERT
At 1st January 2010 (restated) RZZE—ZTF—A—H
(E51) (787) (15,690) (16,477)
Charged to profit or loss BB &= Rk
(restated) (E51) - (2,200) (2,200)
At 31st December 2010 and R-ZT— gi
1st January 2011 (restated) "l': =
—E——F—
(EEIJ) (787) (17,890) (18,677)
Exchange realignment MEH Z%E - (2,618) (2,618)
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss BBz AR~ (F0B) 617 (1,480) (863)
At 31st December 2011 R-ZE——F
+=B=+-—~H (170) (21,988) (22,158)

At the reporting date, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$274,708,000 (2010: HK$299,869,000)
available for offset against future profits. Deferred tax
asset has not been recognised for these tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
As at 31st December 2011, the Group did not have
any significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities
(2010: Nil).

No deferred tax liability has been recorded on
temporary differences of HK$46,947,000 (2010:
HK$18,261,000) relating to the undistributed
earnings of foreign subsidiary because the Group
is in a position to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that
such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

R#wER - ZKEIﬁﬂiEJWT)ﬂWEﬁﬁ*EMUZW
TR E515274,708,000/8 7T (ZF —F 4 : 299,869,000
BIL) ° m’\ﬂﬂzmﬂﬁéﬂ/ﬁéﬁw R Lt 7 % 1 5%
EREBRERECHBEE - R=-F——F+=A

=t—A ASETEEAREBRLTHEAR (S
T-TF )

HRANEEBENEH B TR ZEBEEZE
BA RGN A RARED - AW EFRINGEA
RIRDIRBH B2 G R E546,947,0008 L (ZF
—Z4F : 18,261,000/ 7T) R ELEHIBARE -
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - GROUP AND 26. EELEBEEE-—AREERAEATF (HF)
COMPANY (Continued)

Company PN
At the reporting date, the Company did not have any RER  AARWEFNERRBHEEERIBEAE
significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities (2010: (ZE—ZFF  &|) -
Nil).

27. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY 27. BA-AKEERAEKDT
The share capital of the Company consists only of ARG ZRAEBREL B - 1A RMDEATKERE
ordinary shares. All shares are equally eligible to REERA -

receive dividends and the repayment of capital.

2011 2010
—EB-—-F —Z2-Z2fF
Number Number
Notes of shares of shares
B 5 R & E RingE
’000 HK$’ 000 000 HK$' 000
T TER T TR
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each SREB2B T EAK 3,000,000 600,000 3,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEATRAR
At 1st January ®R—A—H 1,986,606 397,321 1,866,606 373,321
Shares repurchased and BB Rt kin
cancelled (@) - - (120,000) (24,000)
Shares issued upon exercise T IE LT RREER
of unlisted warrants B2 B (b) - - 240,000 48,000
At 31st December R+=—RA=+—-H 1,986,606 397,321 1,986,606 397,321
Notes: B2
(@)  Shares repurchased and cancelled (@) MERTHEzBRG
In 2010, the Company repurchased a total of R-T—Z46F  AQFAA £463,042,0005 T2 &
120,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the 1 5 6] 4 $£120.000,0008% 28 2 7] 3 75 7R 45 J& I {50.2
capital of the Company at an aggregate consideration R T ﬁf;iﬁza%‘ﬁ'&%ﬁfg/ﬁ%\li%ﬁﬁﬁo 53

of approximately HK$63,042,000. The highest and

lowest price paid were HK$0.53 per share and o on S e B iy v
HK$0.49 per share respectively. The repurchased SORAESBAZSRD 2 EE - BEE R

shares were cancelled and the issued share capital R EERFNR - SRSERTHROVOEEZ
of the Company was reduced by the nominal value FECERABREEEABOFE -

of these shares accordingly. The premium paid on

repurchases was charged to the share premium

account. An amount equivalent to the nominal value

of the shares cancelled was transferred from share

capital to the capital redemption reserve.

ABTRER0.49E T - BEKRMHEZH MARAE
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27. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b)  Shares issued upon exercise of unlisted warrants

In April 2009, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with several independent
third parties in relation to the issuance of
240,000,000 unlisted warrants at HK$0.012 per
warrant. The unlisted warrants confer the rights to
subscribe for the Company’s new shares at HK$0.2
per share for a period of 36 months from the date of
issue of the warrants and up to the expiry of the 36th
month from the date of issue of warrants. Each of the
subscription prices is subject to adjustments. Each
warrant carries the right to subscribe for one new
share of the Company.

Net proceeds of approximately HK$2,880,000 were
raised and included in the warrant reserve. In 2010,
the aforesaid independent third parties had exercised
240,000,000 unlisted warrants to subscribe for
new shares of the Company at HK$0.2 per share.
Accordingly, proceeds of HK$48,000,000 were raised
and credited to the share capital of the Company.

28. SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
30th May 2002, a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.
The New Scheme replaced the share option
scheme adopted on 17th November 2000 (the “Old
Scheme”) but without prejudice to any share option
previously granted under the Old Scheme prior to its
termination. Since the adoption of the New Scheme,
no further options can be granted under the Old
Scheme.

27.

28.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

BAE-FEERARQF ()

BieE : ()
(b) MITEIFLTRREBRET RN

RZZTAEMA ARARBRBEEBUE=FRRE
19 58 A% 750.0127%8 7T 8 17240,000,000175 3 £ 1 38 B%
BEB—ORERSE - FLTRAREZETFEMNR
BRITRBER AR ERITRMMER A YR 36[
BEw B AR B R0.278 TRE AR R 2 # D o
REEHATFTURAE - SHRBREEHW G EF TR
BADBRH D -

#)2,880,0008 T2 TBENIBEFHEEES VA ARRK
BERE - R_T—ZF LUBIUE=HOI1E
240,000,0001 3k E TR R E - A BIR0.2B TR
AABZ LB - FH it - F1548,000,0007 T 2 Fi %
F o UBFARREZRAR -

R

BARBR-_ZE_FRAA=TRETZRRBFK
SLBBCEBRER  ARRRMA—FNBRAER
B (T#&t8)) - A BMAR_FTTTE+—A++L
Az Bt 8 ([ERt8)) Y THERES
R IERTR B ER B 2 IR E - RMFT AT &)
% BEREAIRLEMBRE -
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 28. ER#E(E)

ARRRIUHEE BERERMHEESIAEEE

The Company operates the New Scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and reward to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the New Scheme include the directors (including
executive and non-executive directors), other
employees and any professional advisor and
business consultant of the Group from time to time
determined by the directors as having contributed
or who may contribute to the development and
growth of the Group. The New Scheme is effective
on 30th May 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, remains in force for 10 years from that
date.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company,
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the New Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of adoption.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company,
total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of the options
granted to each participant including both exercised
and unexercised options under the New Scheme
or any other share option scheme adopted by the
Company in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

The limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted under any
share option schemes of the Company if this will
result in the limit being exceeded.
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28.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding any independent non-executive
director who is a proposed grantee of the share
options). In addition, any share options granted to
substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the official closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon
payment of nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by
the grantee. Each share option vested immediately
at the date when the option is accepted, which
is the commencement of the exercise period. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the term
of the New Scheme at any time during the period
commencing one week from the date on which the
option is accepted and expiring on a date to be
notified by the directors to each grantee, which shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which
the New Scheme is adopted.

The subscription price for the shares of the
Company to be issued upon exercise of the options
shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by the SEHK on the date
of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the SEHK for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date
of grant. The subscription price will be established
by the board of directors at the time the option is
offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the New Scheme
after the date of the 10th anniversary of the adoption
of the New Scheme.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
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28. MBI HE (&)

MAARRRES  TBTHABRTIERRABRES
BZBBEARLBRE SMAKCBUFRTES
(TEE RBBRERTARAZEMBLFNTES)
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 28. ER#E(E)
New scheme it
Details of options granted by the Company under REE—ZT——FRZZE—ZTFF+-A=+—HBLEMW
the New Scheme to the employees of the Group to BEESERN  AARREFTERNAEERER T
subscribe for shares in the Company during each of BRELNREARABRD  FHOT :

the two years ended 31st December 2011 and 2010
are as follows:

Number of share options
BREHR
Exercise Outstanding Outstanding at
price of  at 1st January 31st December
share 2011 2011
Name of participants ~ Date of grant Exercise period of options*** W=E——%  Lapsed during R-E--%
or category of share options * share options** BRE -A-H theyear +-B=1-H
SEARZRER BREZE LA BREZTHEHE 2T E i K17 ERER R AT
HK$
B
Directors
B3
Mr. Wong Chung Tak 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
TREEE “EELE-AT-R 29th May 2012
“ERHE-AZ+-RAZ
“E-“F#RAZtNB
Mr. Tse Kam Fai 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
HBELE “EELE-FTZH  29th May 2012
“ZZ+E-A-+-HE
ZZ-Z£RAZthA
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
ED'¢ $l:a “ZT+E-AFZH  29th May 2012
“ZTtE-A-t-RE
ZZ-ZFRAZTNA
Miss Chong Kally 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
HEM A “ZEEE-AFZA 29th May 2012
“ERHE-A-+-AZ
ZE-ZF#RAZtNB
28,000,000 - 28,000,000
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

New scheme (Continued)

Name of participants

or category

SRAERAER

Other employees
HitES
In aggregate

A
PR

Eligible participant
AARZEA

Weighted average
exercise price

MEFITEE

Date of grant
of share options *

BREZRA4AH

12th February 2007
“EZS+E-AFH

12th February 2007
“ZSHF-RTCR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

28. FEME (M)

et &l (&)
Number of share options
BREHA

Exercise Outstanding Outstanding at

price of  at 1st January 31st December

share 2011 2011

Exercise period of options*** BW=E——%  Lapsed during R-E--%

share options™ EhE -A-H theyear +Z-A=t-AH

BRE2TREBHE 2 IR E™ K17 ERER KA

HK$
B
21st February 2007 to 0.72 13,800,000 - 13,800,000
29th May 2012

“ERtE-AZ+-RAZ
“¥-ZfRA=+NA

13,800,000 - 13,800,000

21st February 2007 to 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000

29th May 2012

“ERHE_AZ+-AZ
—Z2--fAA=1AA

48,900,000 - 48,900,000

HK$ HK$

B B

0.72 0.72
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 28. BERE (&)
New scheme (Continued) FatEl (&)
Number of share options
BREZA
Exercise Outstanding at
price of Outstanding at 31st December
share  1st January 2010 2010
Name of participants Date of grant Exercise period of options™ R-Z-ZF Lapsed during RZZ-F%
or category of share options * share options** Eie —A—H theyear TZAZT-H
SENERTER BREKHAS BREZTRBHE" 2B HARITHR ERXH WARITHRE
HK$
BT
Directors
g2
Mr. Wong Chung Tak 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 7,100,000 = 7,100,000
TRELE “EELE-AT-R 29th May 2012
2R+ E-AZT-HE
“Z-—fRAZTNR
Mr. Tse Kam Fai 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
MBELE ZETHEZFTZH  29th May 2012
“FEtF-A=+-RAZ
ZE-Z£RAZthA
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 6,900,000 = 6,900,000
Ikt ZETHEZAFTZH  29th May 2012
Rt E-A-+-HE
ZE-ZfRA-TNA
Miss Chong Kally 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
R/ ZEELEZAFTZA 29th May 2012
Rt E-AZT-HE
“E-ZERAZ+AA
28,000,000 - 28,000,000
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 28. BERE (&)
New scheme (Continued) et El ()
Number of share options
BREZA
Exercise Outstanding at
price of Outstanding at 31st December
share  1st January 2010 2010
Name of participants Date of grant Exercise period of options™* R-Z-ZF Lapsed during RZE-%F
or category of share options * share options** Eie —A—H theyear TZAZT-A
SENERTER BREKHAS BREZTRBHE" e HARITHR ERXH MR
HKS$
BT
Other employees
HitES
In aggregate 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 13,800,000 = 13,800,000
B 29th May 2012
“ERLE-ATZR ZEREE-A-T-HE
“Z-—fRAZTAR
13,800,000 - 13,800,000
Eligible participant 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to
BRERBEA “EELE-AF-H 29th May 2012 0.72 7,100,000 = 7,100,000
“ERHE_A-+-AZ
—Z2--f7fR=1+AA
48,900,000 - 48,900,000
HK$ HK$
BT B
Weighted average exercise price
MEFHTEE 0.72 0.72
* The vesting period of the share options is from the * ZEERECFBHEREAHEZTERZAKA
date of grant until the commencement of the exercise H -
period.
**  The exercise period will lapse in three months after o TEEABREARARETE=ZEARK -
the resignation of grantee.
“*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to o AN A RN R AR SO AL R S E A SR L S -
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or ZEBREZITEBATRAE -

other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
New scheme (Continued)

No share options were granted during the years
ended 31st December 2011 and 2010.

No liabilities were recognised on the equity-settled
share-based payment transactions.

At 31st December 2011, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and
remain outstanding under the share option schemes
was 48,900,000 (2010: 48,900,000) representing
2.5% (2010: 2.5%) of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date and the weighted average
remaining contractual life of 0.4 years (2010: 1.4
years).

29. RESERVES
Group
The amount of the Group’s reserve and movements
for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
45 of the financial statements.
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28.

29.
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29. RESERVES (Continued)

20. f#% (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Company KA FE
(Accumulated  Proposed
Share Capital losses)/ final and
Share  Contributed option Warrant  redemption Retained special
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings  dividends Total
(ZBEE)/ BEFER
REVEE  ARER BRERE IREIRE EFRERE  REEA BARE A%
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TEn TR TEn TER TEn TR TR
At 1st January 2010 R-2-25-f-H 602,457 21423 5,598 2,830 4623 (103,882 - 783,049
Expenses incurred EERDRAmEL
in connection with A%
shares repurchase (63,042) - - - 24,000 - - (39,042)
Expenses incurred BREATELT
in connection with AREEMEEZRY
issue of new
unlisted warrants ® - - - - - = @)
Exercise of unlisted I L mRREE
warrants 2,830 - - (2,830) - - - -
Transaction with owners ~ EEEAZX 5% (60,220) - - 2,830) 24,000 - - (39,050)
Profit for the year ERaH - - - - - 191,782 - 191,782
Total comprehensive ER2AUALE
income for the year - - - - - 191,782 - 191,782
Proposed final 2010 B#-5-3%
dividend RBRE - - - - - (29,799) 29,799 =
At 31stDecember 2010  W=F-ZF+-f=1-H
and 1st January 2011 k=%--£-8-8 542,237 271,423 5,598 - 28,623 58,101 29,799 935,781
2010 paid final dividend BZE-SERERE - - - - - - (29,799) (29,799)\
Transaction with owners ~ REAAZR % - - - - - - (29,799) (29,799)
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (19,959) - (19,959)
Total comprehensive ERRERALE
income for the year - - - - - (19,959) - (19,959)
Proposed final and special EE-E--EXHR
2011 dividends RARE - (158,928) - - - (31,786) 190,714 -
At 31st December 2011 R-E--£+-8=1-A 542,237 112,495 5,598 - 28,623 6,356 190,714 886,023
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29. RESERVES (Continued) 29. f#fE ()

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

1 28 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited ZYIRIFHERER AT

Contributed surplus

The Group’s contribute surplus amount is the
net effect of the amount that arose from the
group reorganisation on 18th July 1990, which
represented the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s share issued under
the reorganisation scheme, in exchange for the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired and the amount that arose from the
capital reorganisation on 1st April 2003 which
represented the balance of the credit amount
arising from the capital reduction and share
premium cancellation after the elimination with
the Company’s accumulated loss as at 31st
December 2001.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain
companies in the PRC are required to transfer
part of their profits after tax determined under
the PRC accounting standards to the statutory
reserve fund, before profit distributions are
made. The amounts of the transfers are subject
to the approval of the boards of directors of
these companies and/or articles of association.
The statutory reserve fund is non-distributable
and may be used either to offset losses, or for
capitalisation issues by way of paid-up capital.

Warrants reserve

As described in note 27(b), in 2010, the
warrants reserve of HK$2,830,000 was
transferred to share premium upon the exercise
of the unlisted warrants.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve of the Company
represents the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company repurchased and
cancelled.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BB

REBZHMBERNERIA T MIERE 27
2 - NAWNZEFLATNBZEREETRZ
RE DERBEAFEBTRERBRZAR
ARMEEEMBAMNBRAKRNEEZEZ
ZH _ET=FNA-RAZRAEEERZ
B TR AN R B R B A B AR SR A 4 i (B AR
ZERBMER-_FTE-—F+_A=+—HZZ
EERR &R

EERBES

REFBEA - FERAETREAEFELR
Moiksl  BEBORETESH RANEE 2
MERGENEREZERBES - BRABEZLF
ARZEEGZHAER /LARERME < &
ERBESTADIK AR EERIAR
RBEAMAEHEAET -

RAREXRE
AN FE27 (0)Fr it - M= FE—F 4 - 2,830,000
BITRREBFENTEELTRRERRGE
BERMDRME -
B EE A

ARBZEABEFEBHEEBEREEHZA
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
Group
As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties and
properties held for sale under operating lease
arrangements, with lease terms ranging from one
to twenty years, with an option to renew the lease
terms at the expiry date or at dates as mutually
agreed between the Group and the respective
tenants. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions.

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$36,133,000 (2010: HK$44,506,000).

30.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
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SEAREH
A
(RS

ARBRBEEAERERRENERSENE
BESMA—FE— 5% TRERIMARAE
EEATRIAE HE2 A BE RS R o B E R
BENEFAPLMERS - DREEHZTRED
BEES -

REEZYWEMRS KA E36,133,0008 T (ZF—F
£ 44,506,000 7T) °

At the reporting date, the Group has contracted REER  AEBEBEFITE BEKEERNES D
with tenants for the following future minimum lease T~ 8
payments:
2011 2010
—B-—-F —TFF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT FET
Within one year —FR 34,997 32,832
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEZFEAFN
(ERMEBEER) 38,619 45,218
After five years % 9,939 11,102
83,555 89,152
Company AT

The Company does not have any significant
operating lease arrangements.

ARBYEEMEALEEER -
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31.
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—— A=t ALEE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,

the

Group had the following related party

transactions.

(@)

During the year, the Company paid
HK$484,000 (2010: HK$486,000) for the
corporate secretarial services provided by Uni-
1 Corporate Services Limited. Mr. Tse Kam Fai,
an executive director of the Company, is also a
director of the said company.

During the year, the Group traded listed
securities through Thing On Securities Limited
(“Thing On”), of which Mr. Wong Chung
Tak (“Mr. Wong”), an executive director of
the Company, is also a director. The Group
paid approximately HK$885,000 (2010:
approximately HK$661,000) to Thing On as
handling commission.

During the year, the Group received rental
income of approximately HK$3,140,000 (2010:
approximately HK$3,520,000) for leasing out
an office and a residential property to Junny
Diamond Co. Limited (“Junny”), of which Mr.
Wong is also a director.

Key management personnel compensation:

Included in employee benefit expenses are key
management personnel compensation and
comprise the following categories:

Short term employee benefits
Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

e B &7
RARAE I AT &I

31. BBEAERS

BR %
4

EUBREEMBTARBELZFREALRS
AREZETTIREALRS °

RAREE  ARRARRGKE—CERBEER QRN
R Z RAIME R % 17484,0008 T (ZF —
T 486,000/87T)  ARBIAITESHIRIE
TENMBZARZES -

RAFE AREERERESFEARARA(E
ZNEELTRES  FARARTEETREL
E(EEEDABZRARAZES - KAEBXN
& % #1885,000/8 7T (ZE —Z 4 : 49661,000/%
T ERZHRAE -

RAFE  ASERENEBAAERAR ((EF])
THR-—EHAZEREEDE BEHEASEALY
3,140,000/ T (ZF — T £ : #3,520,000/%
) c ERENMAZARES -

TEEEABHH:

TEERABFMHARTENAL M
THR

2011 2010
—E2-—-F —TFF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FiT THT
3,407 3,407

24 24

3,431 3,431
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32. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. HEWEAH

During the year, the Group disposed of 100% equity
interest of Opportunity Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries, Metro Talent Development Limited and
FRIEFEE OFY) BRAE (collectively the “OIL

£ K& E HEOpportunity Investments Limited
N E W E AR Metro Talent Development Limited &
ERESFHEECCRI)ERLR (RBIOLER]) 2
100%B% 4% - K18 517,025,000/ T - OILEBR HE

Group”) for HK$17,025,000. Net assets of the OIL HE 2 FEENT :
Group at the date of disposal were as follows:
HK$’000
FET
Net assets disposed of comprise: FHEZREERRE
Property, plant and equipment ) E ] 600
Cash at banks R1TIR & 14,400
Other receivables H b fE 5/ IH 24
Other payables H A fE 1 5RIA (424)
14,600
Translation reserve released [ 5 R 0 (2,790)
Statutory reserve fund released FEREEESED (26)
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEN B ARz Filas 5,241
Total consideration BRE 17,025
Satisfied by: PR VE A
Cash Be 17,025
Net cash inflow arising on disposals: HEEEZFRERA
Cash consideration HeRE 17,025
Cash at banks disposed of HERITHES (14,400)
2,625

mwm%mmmﬁﬁ&131
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. cRIEMREEARREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risk
such as market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk, which result from both its operating
and investing activities. According to the Group’s
written risk management policies and guidelines, the
financial risk shall be assessed continuously by the
management taken into account of the prevailing
conditions of the financial market and other relevant
variables to avoid excessive concentrations of
risk. The Group has not used any derivatives or
other instruments for hedging purpose. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed to are described below.

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly
operates and invests in Hong Kong and PRC
with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in HK$ and RMB respectively.
No foreign currency risk has been identified
for the financial assets in the PRC as they
were denominated in a currency same as the
functional currencies of the group entities
to which these transactions relate. The
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
primarily arises from bank balances which are
denominated in United States Dollars (“US$”).
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

To mitigate the Group’s/Company’s other
exposure to foreign currency risk, cash flows in
foreign currencies are monitored in accordance
with the Group’s/Company’s risk management
policies. The foreign currency denominated
financial assets and liabilities, translated into
Hong Kong dollars at closing rates, are as
follows:

Cash and bank balances R4 R iB1T#&%

As US$ is pegged to HKS$, the Group does
not expect any significant movements in
the US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity
analysis in respect of the Group’s financial
assets denominated in US$ is disclosed as
in the opinion of directors, such sensitivity
analysis does not give additional value in view
of insignificant movement in the US$/HK$
exchange rates as at the reporting date.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group and the
Company since prior years and are considered
to be effective.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

33. cRIEMEEARREE (&)

% AR (&)
() SMEmRE (E)

RBEAREE/ KARABEMINERRE - SMNER
ERERBAKE KRR ZEBRERRFS
TER - IBITEREERAR (RKRMEX
BMERET)NOT

Group Company
r5H NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-§ CZ%-TF ZEB--—-§ ZZT-IZF
Expressed Expressed Expressed Expressed

in HK$’000 in HK$'000  in HK$’ 000 in HK$’ 000
UFBRARR UTETRT AFTBRRT NTELRTR

uss$ us$ us$ Us$
0 e eI XL
33 6 23 -

RRETEBTHS AEEBEHET BT
EXTefEMEAEZY FRAKENET
IRz EBMEEZBERE DN E T IARE
REAREERAEBGURE DT L ERRHEI

YREA o

AEBEARRBEREFRAR-—BEETER
SRR ZIRER Y RBZEBREN
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

1 34 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited ZYIRIFHERER AT

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group has no borrowing. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to bank balances
which bear floating interest rates.

The Group manages interest rate risk by
monitoring its interest rate profile as set out in
note 24 by using a mix of fixed and variable
rate investments, including bank deposits.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the profit after tax for the year and retained
earnings to a change in interest rates of +100
basis points and -100 basis points (2010: +100
basis points and -100 basis points) with effect
from the beginning of the year. The calculations
are based on the Group’s bank balances held
at each reporting date. All other variables are
held constant.

If interest rates were 100 basis point
(2010: 100 basis point) higher
Net profit for the year increased by

If interest rates were 100 basis point
(2010: 100 basis point) lower
Net profit for the year decreased by

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior year are
considered to be effective.

33. EREMEEEEREE (&)

% AR (8)
(i) FEE R

114 7 & | FH1 001 £ 26
(ZZ—Z4F : 100@EZ)
O [Z 45 75 hn

it 1) 2= BE K1 00 26
(ZZ—ZTF  100fBAEZ)
FEHFIR A

MERBRESRTAZ ATERBSREAD
5 BB TR 2 A b o AR WIS -
AEBPNFIRB L2 DHEREBRBERH
FBRIE BITEHEN -

AEEZEBREN XN (K E24m ) R A
BlEMFBFEERE (BRRITER) <A KA
B BEEMERER -

118 4F #) RE | & Ft 1= 1 001 £ 26 I P& K1 0018 £ 26

—E—ZF : FH10018 E B K B 10018 E
o) - ANFERRFE R AR 5 A SR E ST
IR TR DREASEREHREAFEZ
RITHERTE BB HMEHRETE -

2011 2010
—B-—-F —TFF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T THT

62 145

(62) (145)
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. cRIEMEEARREE (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) 5 E kK (%)
(iii)  Price risk (i) EEE R

Price risk relates to the risk that the fair values
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices (other than changes in interest rates and
foreign exchange rates). The Group is exposed
to other price risk arising from listed equity
investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Details about
the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are set out in note 23. The board of
directors manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk
and return profiles and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.
The policies to manage price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior year are
considered to be effective.

For the listed equity securities, an average
volatility of 25.73% and 18.84% has been
observed in the Hang Seng Index and Shanghai
A Share Index in 2011 respectively (2010:
18.26% and 23.05% respectively). If the quoted
stock price for these securities had increased
or decreased by that amount, the Group’s
profit after tax for the year and the equity
would have been increased or decreased
by approximately HK$14,696,000 (2010:
approximately HK$10,432,000).

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the price change had occurred
at the reporting date and has been applied to
the Group’s investment on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.

ERERIESRIAZAFERARRERE
SREMSER (FIXEHRINEZ BRI K
gmIgnEk AEEZHEGERRRIIE
EREAKRE (D ERRATEIAEREZE
REE) MY - FARAVEIABSRZ SR
BEZHBEHNMT2Z EXZGRBERFES
TRERREREH 2 REARERILRAR Y&
REEEZREEPILEAR AEEEREFE
KRB ET 2 ERBERERBERABRBA -

HREMZBRAES BIEINELEEER
TEAREERN —E——F 2 FEYREDRA
25.73% 1% 18.84% (ZZT—ZF : 5 51518.26%
1:23.05%) © iM% F &5 2 AR E 7 = sk PR K
ZHE  MAEEAFEZRBEREN RER
#5312 sk R 4> 4914,696,0008 7 (— T — T4
#910,432,000/ 7T) °

FREIMDBREREDEERRER I
EEARAKERZBEZRE -

AEBEEBEFEAR-BEETRANERRR
EEHR ZEBRRERBREXR -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. cRIEREEARREE (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The carrying
amounts of these financial assets presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position are net
of impairment loss, if any. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables and loans
and receivables, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all debtors. These evaluations focus
on the debtors’ past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the debtors as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the debtors operate. Trade receivables are due
within 90 days from the date of billing. The Group
does not obtain collateral from customers in respect
of trade receivables, while for loans and receivables,
collaterals are usually obtained (see note 22).

The credit risk on Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-ratings agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables and loans and receivables are
set out in notes 21 and 22, respectively.

The credit and investment policies have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a decisive level.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. In the management
of liquidity risk, the directors monitor and maintain a
level of bank balances deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and from fund raising activities
such as placement of new shares and issuance of
warrants.

All the Group and Company’s financial liabilities will
be settled within 12 months from the reporting date.
As at 31st December 2011 and 2010, the Group
has no borrowings. Based on the assessment of the
directors, liquidity risk encountered by the Group is
minimal.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Fair value measurement recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets
measured at fair value in the statement of financial
position in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.
The hierarchy groups financial assets into three
levels based on the relative reliability of significant
inputs used in measuring the fair value of these
financial assets. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

33.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

ctREREEREREE (H)

RBESRR

RBECRBREASERERTEUNRSHZING
CREEEESRHAGNEENRR - HERRDE
ERBME EFEZTASERRHBRNAEERL
EREREREBERZRITEHKF - AEETE
BRREMELZESRBEBERY (LMEEHKR K
BOIRBER) IS ESBNEREBRATR -

REBERARRzHAESRHABEENRRESBRAA
+-EARNEE R-E——ER-_FE—ZTF+-A1
=t+—HB AEETEREK - BREESTE  A5H
ZREESEBRBIE o

AREERREFENR-—BEETRIESHR @ 3
BRERRNEERDESRRTEAR -
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Rl

REEUBERREBER AT EFNE
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AEMRAZEZERABZHAETENE  KeREE
MER=ZE RTESHHNENEMT :
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BE-F——F1-A=+—HILFE
33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. cRIEREEARREE (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the REGEMBERRKRER QA FEFTE (H)
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the REEERGEABDERH A TEAEMSBEE
financial asset is categorised in its entirety is based NBABNREER ZOBHeMEEETERD
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the B

fair value measurement.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the REETBRARANAFEFEZ2REERRTEE
consolidated statement of financial position are ERHEHREDT
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Group
rEH
2011
—E——F
Assets Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE B B4R B-R B=R Fak o]
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FER TER FTER FER
Listed equity securites REBHIEEEZ
held for trading ETRAE
in Hong Kong (a) 57,115 - - 57,115
Group
rEE
2010
—E-ZF
Assets Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Bt 3 E—R K E= B
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHAT FAET FHET FHET
Listed equity securites REBHIEEEZ
held for trading ERRAE
in Hong Kong (@) 57,124 - - 57,124
The methods and valuation techniques used for FFEQFEMRA 5 ARG R E E—3RE HE
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged R LE 37 B o
compared to previous reporting periods.
(a) Listed securities (a) _LHZES
The listed equity securities are denominated in FTRABEABTESY - R FEHLLZER
HK Dollars. Fair values have been determined LEHZMEET - WKRARS AR EINERE
by reference to their quoted bid prices at the RETHRE (WER) -

reporting date and have been translated using
the spot foreign currency rates at the end of
the reporting period where appropriate.
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33.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category

The carrying amounts of the Group and the
Company’s financial assets and liabilities recognised
at the reporting date may also be categorised as
follows. See notes 3.10 and 3.18 for explanations
about how the category of financial instruments
affects their subsequent measurement.

33.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
BE—F——fFf - H=+—HIFEF

ctREREEREREE (H)

TRHEERSHEREIEZRE

REARARTNFEACHRAZEREENSRE
BEZREENAIDENT - RHE3.10%3.185HE
BMIADBEMAFZEEBERAS -

Financial assets SREE

Non-current assets RBEE

Available-for-sale At ECREE
financial assets

Loans and receivables: BER &k EWGRIE

—Loans and receivables —ER Kk EWRIE

Current assets REBEE

Financial assets at fair value

BAFEIARSR

through profit or loss: ZERMEE:
—Held for trading —RHBIEEER
Loans and receivables: B R RE
—Trade receivables —EW AR
—Other receivables — E fh fE W GRIE
—Amounts due from — PR KB A B3R IB
subsidiaries
—Loans and receivables —BER R EWRGRIE
—Cash and cash equivalents —R&KRESEE
Assets classified as held PERGEZEE:
for sale:
— Available-for-sale —AHEEemEE

financial assets

Group Company
rEE AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ OOO
FTHERT TR THERT THET
383 680 - -
133,500 - - -
133,883 680 - -
57,115 57,124 - —
2,220 1,890 - -
8,257 680 73 7
- - 1,363,084 1,289,188
19,000 11,353 - -
719,031 980,984 74,776 46,178
748,508 994,907 1,437,933 1,335,373
- 1,176 - =
939,506 1,053,887 1,437,933 1,335,373
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)

33. EREMEEEEREE (&)

ERMEERSHMEGEIEZHE ()

Group Company
rEH AAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F CZE-ET§F =Z—ZEB-—-§ ZT-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FHET FERT FHET
Financial liabilities SRBE
Current liabilities REBAE
Financial liabilities measured REENATEZ
at amortised cost: EHAE:
—Other payables —H b 5K 19,884 18,124 1,384 1,541
—Amount due to a subsidiary — B —FEH B R FFIE - = 152,470 =
19,884 18,124 153,854 1,541
34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 34, EAEBERRRER
PROCEDURES
The Group’s capital management objectives are: REBZEAERBERZEAR

-  to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern; and

—  to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The directors of the Company also balance its overall
capital structure periodically. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, new
shares issue as well as of warrants. The directors
of the Company will also consider the raise of long-
term borrowings as second resource of capital when
investment opportunities arise and the return of such
investments will justify the cost of debts from the
borrowings.
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34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND

35.

PROCEDURES (Continued)

Total equity
Borrowings

Overall financing

Capital-to-overall financing ratio

The directors of the Company also endeavour to
ensure the steady and reliable cash flow from the

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥Rk P ot

for the year ended 31st December 2011
e —F——fFF - H=+—HIFF

BB

BERHREMBEALE

normal business operation. For both years, the

Group did not raise any debt.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

34. EXEERREEF (H)

2011 2010
—E2-—-F —T-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET THET
(restated)

(251)

1,855,101 1,786,009
1,855,101 1,786,009
1:0 1:0

35. FEMBLF

as at 31st December 2011 are as follows:
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered capital
Name operations BRTEERS/
R HMAL/ Sy aMERZEE
Assets Partners Group Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each
(BVI") 1RERIET
EBRAEE
(ZBEx#E])
Cathay Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each
BREEFRAA £ 2RERIET

AEMT

ARABZEENBNERAEEBLEZRE N5
ZHEERE - MEER  AREREEEETRELS

RZE-——F+-_A=+—H ARARIEENBLA
Percentage of
issued/paid-up capital
held by the Company
KARMBERT/
LN
Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
EE BE IEEE
100 - Investment holding
RERR
100 - Securities trading

provision of financial
services and investment
holding

FHEE  RUSHRER
REER
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. FEWE AR (H)

Percentage of
Nominal value of issued/paid-up capital
issued ordinary held by the Company
Place of share capital/ RARAMEERT/
incorporation/ registered capital B ERL A
Name operations ERTLEREY/ Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
B ERRL/SEwE  ERERZEE HE B IEXE
China Information Industry Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each = 100 Investment holding
Limited A MREHRIET NERE
MEESEXFERLA
Dawning Information Industry PRC HK$152,120,000 - 100 Property leasing
(Shenzhen) Limited * HE 152,120,000/ NEHE
BREREX(RINBRAR!
GOI Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 - Property investment
3 2MRBRIET NERE
Goldseed Developments Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each = 100 Property leasing
EBRRRARAH A RBRAET NERE
Grandtex Development Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100 - Property investment
BRERARAT 3 1008 B 17T UES &
New Phenomenon Technology BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100 - Investment holding
Limited ABRUES RERIET RARR
Oriental Grand Development Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each = 100 Property investment
Limited 3 WrERIET UES &
ERERARAT
Stadium Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 - Property investment
EREREBRAR &b WERIBT NERE
Trinity Sino Limited Hong Kong 1 shares of HK$1 each 100 - Investment holding
BRHERAA &k 1RER1ET RALR
Twente Company Limited BV 100 shares of US$1 each - 100 Property investment
ABRUBS 100BERIZT NERE
Yue Tin Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each = 100 Property investment
BARERERAA &k 2RBRIET NERE
” Limited liability company and wholly foreign-owned # EFEERZERAARINGEBERE -

enterprise registered in the PRC.
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31st December 2011 which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of Group. To give details of all the
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year.

35.

T ERR M=

for the year ended 31st December 2011
BE-F——#+ZA=+—AILFEE

TENEAF (&)

J:i%ﬁ’i‘%ﬁﬂﬁ’\:%——iﬂ—_ﬂ_-i— B2 P8
ﬂ EXZRA RFERARHAKERNFAZRES
RYEIRBRAREEEFELTRNN - EFR
7% HIMEMBARZHE  @SREBANITE -

ZEMBARNFREY ERTEMNERZES -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B 5 H 2

Results

Revenue

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

£

WA

BRET G AT

FrgHRx

RERAR
BEE
BaE

Year ended 31st December

BZE+t-A=t-HLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
“E--f ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTTN\E ZTTLF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER TET TET TR THT

(restated) (restated)

(E3) (Z31)
66,500 712,404 76,756 352,469 31,778
80,918 322,290 102,282 86,834 121,861
(10,096) (5,131) (6,870) (18,269) (19,639)
70,822 317,159 95,412 68,565 102,222
70,822 317,159 95,412 68,565 102,222

At 31st December

R+=A=+-H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-—-% CZT-TF CZTTNFE ZZTTN\F CZITTtF
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER THT THx TET THT

(restated) (restated)

(&31) (E31)
1,906,704 1,831,658 1,540,352 1,257,321 1,156,188
(51,603) (45,649) (76,919) (94,515) (64,497)
1,855,101 1,786,009 1,463,433 1,162,806 1,091,691
1,855,101 1,786,009 1,463,433 1,162,806 1,091,691
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR RENTAL BEREZREME
PURPOSE
Approximately Attributable
gross floor area Nature of interest
Location (square metres) property of the Group Lease term

B ANBEER(FHX) WEME FREELER BFEH

Dawning Tower, Shahe Road West, Approximately 23,736 Commercial 100%  Medium-term
Shenzhen High-tech Park, lease
Nan Shan District,

Shenzhen Shi,

The People’s Republic of China

REARAME #23,736 GRS 100% b hik
Flm

i)

A= BT E R 7 7 B

BEXRE

The whole of Level 4 and Units 501-506 on Approximately 5,181 Commercial 100% Medium-term
Level 5, Block B, Beijing East Gate Plaza, lease
No.29 Dong Zhong Street, Dong Cheng District

Beijing, the PRC

REARAME 495,181 EES 100% AR A
ERTRE E

R £7295%

TRRREZBELE

501-506% & 2 M [E

Office Units 1 and 2 on 24th Floor Approximately 1,757 Commercial 100% Long-term
World-Wide House lease
19 Des Voeux Road

Central, Hong Kong

Bt #91,757 [CES 100% 3Lk
R

EEHETI9%

BRAE4EIZRE

Shop Nos. 4 and 5 on Ground Floor Approximately 557 Commercial 100% Medium-term
Flats 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 on 1st Floor and lease
Flats 3 and 4 on 2nd Floor

South Wall Mansion, 63, 63A, 65, 67, 69

and 71 South Wall Road

Kowloon City, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Bt #9557 [ 100% hEEL
JURESH

9,78 1635 + 63A%E » 655 + 674 » 693 K715

PN

T EARESH G

—1#1.2:3:4-5-6 7K8E

RZE3R4E
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

WMEFB

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR RENTAL

PURPOSE (Continued)

Location

B

Flat A on 23rd Floor of Block 2 and
Car Parking Space No. 31

on 2nd Basement

Ronsdale Garden, 25 Tai Hang Drive
Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong
0

B

AI1E255

ERETEE R
WBEAERMEZE

pEERTERIE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Location

B

The whole of 6th Floor, Wings Building,
Nos. 110-116 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

BE

EEAET110-116%%
NEREAEBEE

Office on 30th Floor
United Centre

95 Queensway
Adminalty

Hong Kong

0

&8

£ EBEIDH
F—HL
VEZWMAE

Approximately
gross floor area
(square metres)

ANBEAR(FHK)

Approximately 112

#9112

BEMX

Approximately
gross floor area
(square metres)

ANBEAR(FHK)

Approximately 315

#)315

Approximately 1,903

#1,903
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FEHEZRENR (F)

Nature of
property
WEME

Residential

Nature of
property
MEME

Commercial

R

Commercial

Attributable
interest
of the Group

FREELER

100%

100%

Attributable
interest
of the Group

FREEER

100%

100%

100%

100%

Lease term

BYFEH

Long-term
lease

RHRL

Lease term

ROFH

Long-term
lease

p:ikiika)

Long-term
lease

RHHED




PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

Al ANZ

YEFEA

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued) FEWE (F)
Approximately Attributable
gross floor area Nature of interest

Location (square metres) property of the Group Lease term
i 2 ANBREEE (FHK) MEME AEBEELEES HAFH
17th Floor and Approximately 730 Commercial 100% Long-term
3 car parking spaces on 2nd Floor lease
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre
56 Gloucester Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong
B #7730 EES 100% =3-ikiik
B
ELITE 56%
RERTEER L
17T R 2E={FEf
Offices 805A and 806 on 8th Floor Approximately 311 Commercial 100% Long-term
World-Wide House lease
19 Des Voeux Road
Central
Hong Kong
BiE 4311 GES 100% 3Lk
R

EEER 19%
RN B 812 805AK%806F
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MEFR

LEASEHOLD LAND HELH

Registered site area/ Attributable
Gross floor area interest Nature of  Expected stage
Location (square metres) of the Group property  of construction  Completion date Lease term
AMEBRER/ EEER r5E
ik (E5K) B ER NERE B TR KR BRIRE  HAFES

Lot Nos. 1511, 1594, 1595 and 1598, Approximately 7,446 100%  Agricultural lots Note 1 Note 1 Medium-term
Demarcation District No.91, lease
Kai Leng, Fanling, New Territories,

Hong Kong

&k 417,446 100% RER® liGal it REEN
9141511 + 1594 » 1595

}15983% 4 £

Workshop No. 18 on 22nd Floor Approximately 126 100% Commercial - - Long-term
Honour Industrial Center lease
6 Sun Yip Street

Siu Sai Wan

Hong Kong

&k #1126 100% [EE - - RERYG
EE

MER6%

RATERL

20218%

Note 1: it -
The Group has not yet finalised any construction plan for the site. AEBHAEZEZMBR 2 EZRER Rt BENAMBEHT

Accordingly, no construction has commenced and no expected FTARREMEE At ST B B o
completion date can be concluded.
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